
What’s Changed?
Everything And Nothing

1946-2006

2006 annUaL RePORt



  

Letter to shareholders 

In fiscal 2006, Lowe’s celebrated  
its 60th year of serving customers. 
From humble beginnings as a single hardware 
and general merchandise store in north Wilkesboro, 
north Carolina, this year, our 210,000 employees at nearly 1,400 stores in 49 states  
delivered solid results in a challenging operating environment.

The year started strong with solid 4% 
comparable store sales growth in the first 
half, but the sales environment deterio-
rated more quickly than we had forecasted, 
and our second half comp sales declined 
4.6%. We finished the year with a flat comp 
overall. Three primary factors drove the 
slowdown in sales. 

First, contrary to many forecasts, 2006 
had an unusually mild hurricane season 
(thankfully so). as we cycled the rebuild-
ing efforts from the record damage 
caused by Katrina, Rita and Wilma in 
the back half of 2006, our comp sales in 
many parts of the gulf Coast and Florida 
turned from a double-digit increase to a 
double-digit decrease essentially over-
night. Our stores and employees are still 
actively involved in the rebuilding efforts 
in those areas, but sales in comp stores 
were down from the prior year. In addi-
tion to providing high-quality products for repair and improve-
ment of homes, as one example of our continuing efforts to 
serve customers in affected areas, we partnered with designer 
Marianne Cusato to develop and offer affordable house plans 
we call Lowe’s Katrina Cottages®. We are the exclusive retailer 
for these building plans and the associated materials needed 
for construction. Lowe’s Katrina Cottages combine great style 
and function with easy construction and affordability and offer 
the flexibility to expand in the future. Moreover, they are 
designed to meet hurricane codes, as well as the International 

Building Code. You can find additional 
details about Lowe’s Katrina Cottages 
at www.Lowes.com/katrinacottage. 

second, deflation in lumber and ply-
wood, driven in part by cycling against 
the elevated demand and prices associ-
ated with last year’s hurricanes, impacted 
our sales results in 2006. Unit sales in 
lumber and plywood were essentially flat 
year-over-year, but comp sales were down 
significantly, due to deflation.

and third, and certainly the most 
widely discussed, the housing environ-
ment declined more quickly than we 
and others expected. at the beginning 
of fiscal 2006, in many markets, includ-
ing areas of the northeast, southern 
Florida and the west coast, there were 
clear structural drivers suggesting a 
pullback in housing-related demand. 
That evidence led us to estimate housing 

turnover would decline in 2006 as these once-hot markets 
cooled. What was more difficult to anticipate was the pullback 
in home improvement demand that we experienced in many 
unaffected markets, where housing dynamics remain solid, but 
consumers chose to delay home improvement projects due to 
the well-publicized reports of a slowing housing market and 
declining home values.

as the year progressed, housing turnover slowed more 
quickly and deeply than we originally anticipated. That rapid 
decline also pressured home prices as speculative demand 
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waned, housing supply grew, and homebuyers, as well as home 
improvement consumers, became cautious about spending.

We will continue to monitor closely both the structural drivers 
of demand and the mindset of the home improvement consumer 
through 2007.

even though our sales fell far short of our plan, solid cost 
controls allowed our earnings per share to land only 2.5% below 
the midpoint of our initial forecast. Cost controls included the 
rationalization of promotional advertising, initiatives to better 
manage self-insurance costs and diligent allocation of payroll dol-
lars, but we were cautious to maintain staffing levels that would 
ensure a consistent high level of service in our stores. In addition, 

cally cut spending to maintain earnings, or we could invest 
through the cycle to improve our business and capture market 
share. Our approach is, and will continue to be, to invest. That 
doesn’t mean we haven’t redoubled our evaluation of every 
expense, but we also see opportunity to gain market share by 
ensuring we provide customers with great products and great 
service.

as part of that investment for the future, our store expansion  
continues. In 2006, we added 155 new stores around the country, 
and we’ll add another 150 to 160 in 2007. We see the opportunity 
for more than 2,000 stores in north america with our current pro-
totypes, and as we identify new ways to serve home improvement 
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Financial highlights
In MILLIOns,  eXCePt PeR shaRe data

   Increase 
   Over Fiscal Fiscal
   2005 20061 20051

net sales 8.5% $46,927  $43,243
gross Margin 32 bps2 34.5%  34.2%
Pre-tax earnings 11.2% $ 4,998  $ 4,496
earnings Per share
 Basic earnings Per share 13.5% $  2.02  $  1.78
 diluted earnings Per share 15.0% $  1.99  $  1.73
Cash dividends Per share 63.6% $  0.18  $  0.11

1Fiscal 2005 contained 53 weeks vs. 52 weeks in fiscal 2006
2Basis points

it has long been a part of the Lowe’s culture to 
have a large component of total compensation 
based on performance. The theory is obvious – if 
employees are compensated based on the suc-
cess of their store, or their product category, 
or the success of the company as a whole, they 
have incentive to drive performance and 
higher returns for our shareholders. This year, 
as we fell short of many of the goals we set at 
the beginning of the year, we paid out far less 
incentive compensation than in 2005.

despite the challenges of 2006, we made 
great progress on many initiatives and had 
some notable successes. according to indepen-
dent third-party estimates, Lowe’s gained unit 
market share in all 20 of our product catego-
ries during the calendar year. These share gains 
are a clear indication that despite a cautious 
home improvement consumer, Lowe’s con-
tinues to be the store-of-choice for many.

as I see it, we had two choices as we entered 
this period of slower sales. We could dramati-

customers, that number could rise. This year, we will also open 
our first stores outside of the United states with stores in toronto, 
Canada. Over time, we feel we have the opportunity for up to 100 
stores in Canada. adding to our expansion opportunities outside 
the U.s., in January we announced our plans to open three to five 
stores in Monterrey, Mexico in 2009. 

We will also continue our commitment to invest in our  
existing stores to keep them fresh and up-to-date. We spent  
more than $650 million on existing stores in 2006 to improve 
their look and shopability. We’ll spend an estimated $1.3 billion 
more over the next two years to drive sales and ensure our stores 
remain the easiest and most enjoyable to shop in the industry.

Our greatest hurdle in continuing to grow is ensuring we have the 
right people in place to continue delivering the in-store experience 
that customers have come to expect. I am confident Lowe’s has one 
of the deepest benches in all of retail. That depth runs from the store 
associate level, to our store managers, and all the way to our senior 
management team. The depth at the executive level was evident in 
2006, as Larry stone was promoted to President and Chief Operat-
ing Officer. at the same time, nick Canter moved from his role as 
head of our operations organization to lead our Merchandising 
teams, and Mike Brown was promoted to executive Vice President 
of store Operations. These senior executives will use their vast expe-
rience to ensure Lowe’s is well positioned for our next 60 years.



culture of customer service. My commitment to you, as a share-
holder, employee, vendor or customer, is that we will continue to 
improve our execution in order to capitalize on opportunity.

Thank you for your continued support.

Robert a. niblock

as shareholders and employees, I hope you share my confidence 
in the team we have at Lowe’s. I’m proud that all of these  
promotions were filled with tenured Lowe’s employees which 
highlights the deep bench strength I described.

Looking ahead to 2007, many of the headwinds we faced in 
2006 are likely to lessen, or in some cases, disappear completely. 
We’re certainly all hopeful that we will experience a mild hurri-
cane season similar to last year. But, regardless of this year’s storm 
season, from a comparison standpoint our results will not be chal-
lenged by a significant sales hurdle from rebuilding efforts as they 
were in 2006. Lumber and plywood prices have always been tough 
to predict, but I’m fairly confident we will not likely be facing 
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Sales
In Billions of Dollars

$36.5

$43.2

$26.1
$30.8

02 03 04 05 06

$46.9

The success of our sales initiatives 
has driven a �ve-year compound annual 
growth rate of 17%.

Net Earnings
In Millions of Dollars

$2,167

$2,765

$1,485

$1,822

02 03 04 05 06

$3,105

As we drive sales and become more 
e�cient in our operations, net earnings 
have increased at a �ve-year compound 
annual growth rate of 26%. 

20–40% deflation in the second half of 2007. and finally, as we 
enter fiscal 2007, there are some signs that the worst effects of the 
housing slowdown are behind us. While we are not banking on a 
rapid recovery, the most recent housing data show encouraging 
signs of a stabilization in housing supply and a bottoming in total 
housing turnover, which would lead to improving year-over-year 
trends. Many of those factors are out of our control, as opposed to 
our internal initiatives and programs that are designed to improve 
our execution and enhance our customer service.

We are continuing to develop and test new and better ways to 
serve customers. For example, in 2006 we tested a new in-home 
selling model for installation projects like roofing, siding, fencing 

and millwork. Other channels of trade have historically sold these 
categories with in-home consultation, and our new model puts us 
on equal footing, making the shopping experience easier by elimi-
nating the often multiple trips to our store to complete a sale. early 
results are positive, and we will expand our test in 2007.

We also added new systems, including continuing efforts to 
automate our special Order process to make it quicker and easier. 
In 2006, 82% of our special Order transactions were processed 
electronically. also, we installed new tools like our online kitchen 
design center that allows a customer to make many of the basic 
choices involved in a kitchen remodel online before coming into 
the store. since we rolled it out in February 2006, over 12,000 

customers have used the tool to begin the 
design of their dream kitchen. 

and, we remain committed to providing 
the best customer service in the business. 
Our training programs ensure our employees 
have the product knowledge they need to 
help customers, which drives lower turnover 
and better retention rates of our experienced 
employees, and, ultimately, better service.

These efforts to improve the shopping 
experience at Lowe’s will ensure we continue 
to gain market share, regardless of the exter-
nal environment. Based on the indications 
that the worst of the housing slowdown is 
behind us and the initiatives we have in place 
to drive sales, I believe our sales results will 
gradually improve throughout fiscal 2007, 
and we have the opportunity to deliver 
another solid year.

sixty years of experience brings perspec-
tive. a lot has changed in the history of Lowe’s, 
but what has remained is our core values and 



What’s Changed?
Our Number of  

Customer Transactions

What’s the saMe?
Our Customer Focus



We Focus On 13 Million Customers Each Week
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We Focus On 13 Million Customers Each Week
although times have changed, Lowe’s 
values have not. Customers still drive 
our business, and Lowe’s is committed  
to delivering excellent customer service 
to the more than 13 million customers 
who shop our stores weekly for custom-
ized solutions built around their needs. 

For 60 years, great customer service has been part of the 
Lowe’s culture, and it has never been stronger, even in this 
challenging operating environment. Our solid foundation of 
delivering great customer service drove an 8.5% increase in 
sales in fiscal 2006. 

Our 210,000 customer-focused employees are the foundation  
of our success. We actively recruit career-minded individuals  
and provide ongoing training to sharpen their customer  
service, product knowledge and selling skills. Our career 
opportunities and great benefits enable us to attract and  
retain engaged employees.

We conduct extensive research, gaining valuable insight into  
customers’ needs and building a relationship with them. We 
strengthen our relationship with national advertising and 
targeted local communications. Our new campaign and slogan 
 “Let’s Build something together”™ resonates with customers 
and communicates our values of customer service, helpful 
employees and teamwork. Our customer database gives us 
insight into who shops our stores, and we use this information 
to communicate directly with customers about products and 
projects that interest them most. 

an integral part of our long-term growth strategy is specialty 
sales, including Installed sales, special Order sales, e-Commerce 
sales and Commercial Business Customers (CBC). Installed 
sales continues to grow and serve customers with an enhanced 
product offering, professional installers and well-trained sales 
specialists. special Order sales, where hundreds of thousands 
of products are available to meet customers’ demand for unique 
home improvement solutions continues to grow and represents 
approximately 6% of total sales. We continue to add content 
to our website and enhance our merchandise selection to 
meet customers’ needs. Commercial sales are growing and 
represent approximately 25% of total sales. Our stores carry 
professional-grade products in job-lot quantities and have a 
CBC project desk staffed with sales specialists to meet the 
needs of commercial customers.
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the dO-It-FOR-Me geneRatIOn:
Installed sales have never Been More timely

Lowe’s knows the importance of under-
standing customers’ changing preferences 
and offering innovative products and 
solutions to meet their needs. One com-
pelling trend we have seen is the changing 
preference of baby boomers to do-it-for-me  
(dIFM) from do-it-yourself (dIY). 

Our Installed sales strategy addresses 
the needs of customers who prefer to  
outsource their home improvement 
projects. We offer more than 40 categories  
of installation services and have a network 
of more than 10,000 installers who perform  
reliable, professional installation. the 
relevant Installed sales market is approxi-
mately $165 billion in labor alone. Our 
commitment to continuously improve the 

customer experience by managing the 
installation at the store level with a  
dedicated Installed sales team positions  
us to capitalize on this opportunity.

Our in-home selling model also  
positions us to benefit from the growing 
dIFM segment. Currently, we are testing 
this model and will continue to monitor 
its performance in 2007. We will continue 
to evaluate other opportunities to increase 
Installed sales. 

In 2006, Lowe’s Installed sales grew  
9%, outpacing overall Company sales 
growth. Over the past three years, sales 
have grown at a compounded annual 
growth rate of 22%. 

Installed Sales
$ in Billions

$2.0

$2.6

$1.1

$1.6

02 03 04 05 06

$2.8

Our Installed Sales growth continues to be 
fueled by evolving demographics and the 
strong DIFM phenomenon in the U.S.



What’s Changed?
Our Merchandise

What’s the saMe?
innovative Merchandising       
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We stock innovation On Every Aisle
aPPLIanCes

LUMBeR 

FLOORIng

MILLWORK

PaInt

BUILdIng MateRIaLs

FashIOn PLUMBIng

LIghtIng

tOOLs

LaWn & LandsCaPe PROdUCts

 haRdWaRe

 seasOnaL LIVIng

CaBInets & COUnteRtOPs

OUtdOOR POWeR eqUIPMent

ROUgh PLUMBIng

ROUgh eLeCtRICaL

nURseRY 

hOMe enVIROnMent

 WaLLs/WIndOWs

hOMe ORganIzatIOn



�

We stock innovation On Every Aisle
Customers have always looked for 
ways to make their homes unique and 
Lowe’s always strives to offer the most 
innovative products. We stock more 
than 40,000 products at everyday low 
prices in 20 distinct product categories, 
including everything needed to decorate  
and enhance the home.  

We continue to improve our offering with innovative  
products and brands customers know and trust. Our inspir-
ing product lines offer value at all points along the price 
continuum and feature premium brands such as John deere 
mowers, power tools by deWaLt®, fashion plumbing by 
Kohler® and millwork from Therma-tru® to name just a few.  

 We added new products and merchandise sets during 
2006, offering customers many new choices. In appliances, 
we strengthened our already strong lineup with the new 
Frigidaire elements™ kitchen line, an exclusive at Lowe’s®. This,  
along with high-efficiency laundry products from Bosch, 
samsung, Maytag® and Whirlpool® demonstrate our commit-
ment to offer brands that are compelling and innovative.

In composite decking, we are adding trex®, the leading 
brand in the industry, and we are strengthening our grill 
lineup with Char-Broil® teC® gas grills that feature patented 
infrared technology. In 2007, we will enhance our paint offer-
ing with high-quality Valspar® signature Colors®, Valspar  
duramax®, and Valspar Ultra Premium brands. The Martha 
stewart Colors™ palette will also be available exclusively at 
Lowe’s. These enhancements to our paint lineup ensure we 
provide superior-quality paints and innovative color palettes.

While national brands are important, in some product 
categories brand is less important, and style, quality and 
other features, including price, drive the purchase decision. 
We use our Lowe’s-owned brands such as Real Organized™ 
storage organization, gardenPlus® lawn and landscaping 
products and Portfolio® lighting for product line exten-
sions to offer customers more choices with great value. 
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a ReMOdeLIng eFFORt OF OUR OWn

end caps feature a  
family of products 
displayed together, 
maximizing space and 
offering customers a 
variety of options to 
choose from. 

all stores are on a life-cycle 
maintenance program  
that includes items such  
as re-lamping fixtures  
and polishing floors to  
ensure stores remain 
bright and shopable.

Lowe’s combines 
convenience and 
functionality, while 
providing customers 
clear, concise informa-
tion to make buying 
decisions easier. 

Lowe’s stores feature 
clear, easy-to-read, and 
frequently bilingual  
signage that helps cus-
tomers easily locate the 
products they need. 

In our Paint department, 
customers will find every-
thing nearby needed to 
complete a painting  
project like brushes,  
rollers and drop cloths. 

Lowe’s stores feature wide, bright aisles, easy-to-read store 
signage and well-stocked shelves, ensuring customers will 
find shopping our stores an unparalleled experience in the 
home improvement industry. It is part of our culture to ensure 
customers have a great shopping experience in our stores. 
Therefore, each of our stores receives routine maintenance, 
enhancing the customer experience. Our departments 

are updated with new merchandise sets, creating more 
powerful product presentations, while providing customers 
clear, concise information to make the shopping experience 
easier. We combine attractive product displays with con-
venience and functionality, giving customers an inviting 
shopping environment. In 2006, we invested more than 
$650 million in our existing store base.



 Regional distribution  existing stores  new stores 
 Centers    in 2006 

What’s Changed?
Our reach

What’s the saMe?
Always Extending Our reach



We’re reaching Over 100 New Places A year 

esCOndIdO, Ca

As we continue to expand into the largest U.S. markets, we opened a new  

store in the San Diego, CA metro area. The highly motivated staff in the  

Escondido store consistently provides great customer service.

san antOnIO, tXIn 2006, we opened our eighth store in the vibrant San Antonio market. This store is staffed 
with a talented team that is focused on creating WOW customer service every day.

aRLIngtOn heIghts, IL
The Arlington Heights store is one of our newest in the Chicago 
metro area. This store demonstrates our commitment to continue 
to expand in the top 25 U.S. markets.
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We’re reaching Over 100 New Places A year 

BaY shORe, nYIn 2006, we opened our fourth store in Long Island, NY. This store 

is one of the top performers in our Customer Focused program, 

consistently working to fulfill our customer service expectations.

WaVeLand, Ms 

In response to the tremendous need for affordable housing in the Gulf Coast following the  

destruction caused by Hurricane Katrina, Lowe’s is offering the Lowe’s Katrina Cottage series. We 

constructed one of these affordable, attractive, high-quality homes that are designed to with-

stand wind gusts up to 140 mph at our Waveland, MS store. www.Lowes.
com/katrinaco

ttage.
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although Lowe’s reach has long 
expanded beyond the southeast,  
we continue to see additional  
opportunities to become more  
convenient to customers. In 2006, 
we expanded our reach, opening 
155 stores, ending the year with 
1,385 stores in 49 states, enabling  
us to better serve customers. 

at year-end, 28% of our stores were in the nation’s top 
25 markets and approximately 55% were located in the top 
100 markets. With each new store we open, we raise the 
awareness of the Lowe’s brand and gain new customers. 

We are confident there are considerable opportunities 
to continue to add profitable stores across the United 
states. We believe we can extend our reach in north 
america to more than 2,000 Lowe’s stores. as we expand 
into new markets, we will continue to use our 117,000-
square-foot (117K) and 94,000-square-foot (94K) 
store prototypes as well as evaluate additional store  
prototypes that can be used in a variety of settings 
adjusting for physical constraints. In fiscal 2007, we 
plan to open 150 to 160 new stores with a primary 
focus toward the top 100 markets, which represent 
approximately 67% of home improvement revenue. 
We will balance our metro expansion with the opportu-
nities presented in smaller markets. 

 We have many years of profitable growth ahead of us. 
Our store expansion pipeline is healthy, and, of the more 
than 400 future store locations approved by the Lowe’s real 
estate committee, approximately 40% are in the top 25 
markets and 70% in the top 100 markets. 



theRe’s aLWaYs a PLaCe 
FOR hOMe IMPROVeMent

Lowe’s long-term growth strategy includes serving customers 
in vibrant home improvement markets.

In addition to our U.s. store openings, we will expand into 
Canada in 2007, opening five or six stores in the greater 
toronto market, our first stores outside of the U.s. Over 
time, we envision as many as 100 Lowe’s stores in Canada. 

We also see growth opportunity in Mexico. In 2009, we 
anticipate opening three to five stores in Mexico’s third-
largest city, Monterrey, a vibrant and growing market with 
a culture of homeownership.

We continue to evaluate both U.s. and international oppor-
tunities to meet the needs of home improvement customers.

2007 Projected Store Openings

 Range
northeast 38–40
southeast 26–28
West 33–35
north Central 21–22
south Central 27–29
toronto, Canada 5–6
Projected Openings 150–160

 Lowe’s Operating divisions

Monterrey

Toronto

WEST

NORTH
CENTRAL

NORTHEAST

SOUTHEAST

SOUTH
CENTRAL
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What’s Changed?
Tools For improvement

What’s the saMe?
The drive To improve
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We’re Leaders in The Business  Of improvement

L O g I s t I C s  &  d I s t R I B U t I O n

s t O R e  P R O d U C t I V I t Y

t e C h n O L O g Y
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We’re Leaders in The Business  Of improvement
Lowe’s continuously implements innovative tools 
to better serve customers. Customers who shop 
our stores expect to find a wide selection of 
products to complete their home improvement  
projects at the best prices. the goal of our 
Logistics and distribution organization is to 
improve service in our stores and profitability. 

In 2006, we increased our distribution investment and moved more  
product through our 11 regional distribution centers (RdC) to provide 
better service to our stores. In 2007, we plan to open two additional RdCs 
to support our continued store growth. Our centralized distribution 
network is a competitive advantage. We are able to react quickly and  
efficiently to meet customer demand, ensuring our stores are stocked with 
the appropriate products at the right time. 

also, we continue to invest in systems to enhance productivity and  
improve the shopping experience for customers. Our enhanced technology  

solutions address customers’ changing preferences of how they like  
to shop, from product research to how they complete their 

transaction. Interactive tools on Lowes.com make planning 
projects more convenient for customers. Our online buying 

guides provide valuable product information, and 
customers can use our design tools to plan their 

perfect space. Project calculators are available 
for cost estimates. For customers who prefer 

to use self-check-out registers, they are 
available in almost one-third of our 

stores. In 2007, we will continue 
adding self-check-out registers 

to our stores. also, our online gift registry is available 
at www.Lowes.com that allows customers to register 
for special occasions and projects.

With the assistance of dynamic labor management 
tools, we strive to ensure each of our stores is appropri-
ately staffed. sales specialists are equipped with tools 
to help customers with all aspects of their projects. Our 
continued investments in distribution and technology 
provide a solid foundation to grow our business.

t e C h n O L O g Y



IMPROVeMent WheRe 
It COUnts the MOst

Lowe’s sense of responsibility and commitment to the 
communities in which we do business has never been 
stronger. Working with our vendor partners, we are proud 
to have contributed our time and more than $3 million 
to habitat for humanity’s (habitat) Operation home 
delivery, a long-term gulf Coast rebuilding plan. In contin- 
uation of our long-standing support of habitat, we 
launched a two-year initiative with First Families in 
every state to help increase the awareness of the need for 
affordable housing. 

Continuing with our commitment to the community, 
in 2006, the Lowe’s Charitable and educational Foundation 
distributed more than $15 million in grants to support 
diverse nonprofit community improvement projects and  

public school initiatives, including approximately $5 million 
to nearly 1,000 schools in toolbox for education grants. 
These grants provide funding for outdoor learning environ- 
ments, upgrading libraries and making playgrounds safer, 
to name just a few.

additionally, Lowe’s is committed to helping protect the 
environment. For the fifth consecutive year, we have been 
recognized by the U.s. environmental Protection agency 
and the department of energy with the eneRgY staR® 
Promotion award for our efforts to educate consumers 
about energy-efficient products. 

We will continue to be good neighbors and socially 
responsible citizens by serving our communities and 
employees in ways that reflect our corporate values.

1�
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$0.93

$1.13

$1.35

$1.73

$1.99
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$0.04

$0.06

$0.08

$0.11

$0.18

Over the last 5 years, earnings per share have 
grown from $0.93 to $1.99, a 26% compound 
annual growth rate for the period.

Lowe’s has paid a cash dividend every quarter 
since going public in 1961. Our dividend has 
increased substantially over the last 5 years, 
growing at a 36% compound annual rate.
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Lowe’s 2006 Annual Report

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

This discussion and analysis summarizes the significant factors affecting 
our consolidated operating results, financial condition, liquidity and 
capital resources during the three-year period ended February 2, 2007 
(our fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004). Fiscal years 2006 and 2004 con-
tain 52 weeks of operating results compared to fiscal year 2005 which 
contains 53 weeks. Unless otherwise noted, all references herein for the 
years 2006, 2005 and 2004 represent the fiscal years ended February 2, 
2007, February 3, 2006, and January 28, 2005, respectively. This discus-
sion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial state-
ments and notes to the consolidated financial statements included in this 
annual report.

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

External Factors Impacting Our Business
The home improvement market is large and fragmented. While we are 
the world’s second-largest home improvement retailer, we have captured 
a relatively small portion of the overall home improvement market. We 
estimate the size of the U.S. home improvement market to be approxi-
mately $725 billion annually, comprised of $560 billion of product demand 
and $165 billion of installed labor opportunity. This data captures a wide 
range of categories relevant to our business, including major appliances 
and garden supplies. We believe the current home improvement market 
provides ample opportunity to support our growth plans. 
 Net sales totaled $46.9 billion in 2006, an increase of 8.5% versus the 
prior year. This increase was driven by our store expansion program. The 
additional week in 2005 resulted in approximately $750 million in addi-
tional net sales in 2005. Excluding the additional week, net sales would 
have increased approximately 10% in 2006. However, comparable store 
sales were flat in 2006. The effects of a slowing housing market, difficult 
comparisons to 2005’s hurricane recovery and rebuilding efforts, and 
significant deflation in lumber and plywood retail prices contributed to 
lower than expected sales. 
 At the beginning of 2006, many markets including areas of the 
Northeast, southern Florida and the west coast demonstrated signs of 
slowing housing-related demand. That evidence led us to estimate housing 
turnover would decline in 2006 as these once-hot markets cooled. What 
was more difficult to anticipate was the decline in home improvement 
demand that we experienced in many unaffected markets where housing 
dynamics remained solid, but consumers chose to delay home improve-
ment projects due to well-publicized reports of a slowing housing market 
and declining home values. As the year progressed, housing turnover 
slowed more quickly and deeply than we had originally anticipated. That 
rapid decline also pressured home prices as speculative demand waned, 
housing supply grew and home buyers, as well as home improvement 
consumers, became cautious about spending. We continue to closely 
monitor the drivers of demand and the mindset of the home improvement 
consumer as we enter 2007.
 Despite the housing-related pressures on the consumer, the job market 
remains solid and personal disposable income continues to rise. In addi-
tion, the difficult sales comparisons due to 2005’s hurricanes and last year’s 
commodity deflation are expected to ease in 2007. While we are not 
expecting a rapid recovery, the most recent housing data shows encour-
aging signs of a stabilization of housing supply and a bottoming in total 
housing turnover. Based on all these external factors, combined with our 
internal initiatives to drive sales, we believe the quarterly trend of declining 
comparable store sales performance has bottomed, and we expect to see 
gradual improvement in comparable store sales throughout 2007.
 

Managing for the Long-Term
We continue to manage our business for the long-term. Our vision is to 
provide customer-valued solutions with the best prices, products and 
services to make Lowe’s the first choice for home improvement. In today’s 
environment, it is important that we remain focused on customers. This 
focus on customers drives our operational, merchandising, marketing 
and distribution initiatives to both capture market share and improve 
operating efficiency. 

Capturing Market Share
Investing in existing stores
We continue to gain unit market share by improving the shopping experi-
ence in our stores, and by adding innovative products and services that 
provide value to customers. In addition, we have opportunities to capture 
additional unit market share in each of our 20 product categories by ensur-
ing that we meet the needs of home improvement customers better than 
our competitors. 
 We have consistently invested in our business and we will continue to 
do so, to ensure our stores remain clean, easy to shop and appropriately 
staffed in order to maintain our customer franchise and grow unit mar-
ket share. In 2006, we remerchandised 150 of our earlier-format stores to 
make them more closely resemble our current store prototypes, with 
minimal disruption to our customers. These remerchandising efforts 
focused on moving entire departments, improving adjacencies, and 
enhancing the shopability within the appliances, cabinets & countertops, 
flooring, fashion plumbing, paint, walls/windows, lighting, home orga-
nization, lumber and building materials departments. In addition, we 
replaced or refurbished all of our selling centers, including the returns 
and customer service areas of these stores. All new interior graphics, sig-
nage, and way-finding materials were also added to increase shopability 
and brighten the atmosphere. Finally, we installed self-check-out in all 
150 of our remerchandised stores. In 2007, we expect to complete the 
remerchandising process in over 100 additional stores. We continuously 
make these investments to maintain our best-in-class stores and offer cus-
tomers the shopping experience and environment they expect. As a result, 
despite the external pressures we faced in 2006, we gained 110 basis points 
of unit market share among all 20 of our product categories, according to 
independent measures, a clear indication that more customers are choosing 
Lowe’s for their home improvement needs.

Specialty Sales
We recognize the opportunity that our Specialty Sales initiatives represent 
and the importance of these businesses to our long-term growth. Our 
Specialty Sales initiatives include three major categories: Installed Sales, 
Special Order Sales and Commercial Business Customer sales, internally 
referred to as the “Big 3.” In addition, our effort to utilize e-Commerce to 
drive sales and conveniently provide product information to customers 
is managed by our Specialty Sales group. Our Big 3 Specialty Sales initia-
tives had mixed results in 2006. A hesitation to take on large projects by 
some consumers had an impact on our Installed Sales and Special Order 
Sales in the second half of 2006. Installed Sales increased by slightly more 
than the Company average, while Special Order Sales increased less than 
the Company average. However, sales growth for Commercial Business 
Customers was nearly double the Company average.
 We also continue to refine our offerings, including an ongoing test 
of an in-home selling model for certain Installed Sales categories, new 
Special Order electronic selling tools, and many enhancements to 
Lowes.com, to continue growth in these areas for 2007.
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New store expansion
We have considerable growth opportunities and see the potential for over 
2,000 stores in North America with our current prototypes. In 2006, we 
opened 155 stores (151 new and four relocated) in markets around the 
country, bringing our total to 1,385 stores in 49 states. We plan to open 
another 150 to 160 stores in 2007, including our first stores in Toronto, 
Canada in the second half of 2007. We also announced our intention to 
enter Mexico with plans for three to five stores in Monterrey in 2009.

Improving Operating Efficiency
Store productivity
We are focused on improving store productivity and operational efficiency. 
The more productive our employees are on tasks, the more time they 
have to assist customers. The basics of sustaining productivity include 
assessing the value of tasks performed, accurate planning of sales and 
hours, ensuring our employees are scheduled when customers are shop-
ping, and monitoring key labor metrics. We will also continue to ensure 
that our employee base includes tenured and talented people at all levels of 
the organization to fuel growth and maintain our commitment to service.
 We are also working to further enhance our sales culture by continuously 
providing training for our team and improving our service. Customers tell 
us that they want knowledgeable sales people, so we will continue to focus 
on expanding our employees’ product knowledge.

Merchandising
One way we seek to increase sales is by effectively using displays, signage, 
adjacencies and product packaging as tools to enhance the shopping 
experience. When customers can easily identify features and benefits, 
compare product choices and shop for related purchases nearby, they 
purchase more. When packaging is consistent and informative, when 
allocated space has enough holding power to satisfy demand and when 
store employees keep the displays stocked and shopable, our customers’ 
experience is enhanced. When signage is clear, concise and gives customers 
information they need to make a buying decision, they will also purchase 
more. This is the operationally efficient merchandising approach that 
continues to drive sales in our stores.

Distribution network
Our distribution network supports new store expansion and improves 
operating efficiency. To improve the service and efficiency of this network, 
our largest initiative over the past couple of years was Rapid Response 
Replenishment (R3), which encompassed numerous supply chain enhance-
ments that would allow us to more effectively and efficiently move product 
to our stores in changing demand environments. That platform is firmly 
in place and is now our standard operating model. Many years of invest-
ment in and refinement of our logistics and distribution organization 
have made it one of our key competitive advantages. The organization is 
focused on improving service to our stores, increasing efficiency and 
improving inventory productivity. On average in 2006, nearly 70% of the 
stock merchandise we purchased was shipped through our distribution 
network, while the remaining portion was shipped directly to stores from 
vendors. In the fourth quarter of 2006, we reached nearly 75%. As evidence 
of the effectiveness gained from our distribution network, both compa-
rable stores and distribution center inventories were down slightly versus 
the prior year.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and 
results of operations are based on the consolidated financial statements 
and notes to consolidated financial statements presented in this annual 
report that have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of 
these financial statements requires us to make estimates that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, sales and expenses, and related 
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. We base these estimates on 
historical results and various other assumptions believed to be reasonable, 
all of which form the basis for making estimates concerning the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available from other 
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
 Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the 
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the following account-
ing policies affect the more significant estimates used in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.

Merchandise Inventory
Description
We record an inventory reserve for the loss associated with selling 
inventories below cost. This reserve is based on our current knowledge 
with respect to inventory levels, sales trends and historical experience. 
During 2006, our reserve decreased $38 million to $66 million as of 
February 2, 2007, as a result of better sell-through of obsolete or slow-
moving inventory. We also record an inventory reserve for the estimated 
shrinkage between physical inventories. This reserve is based primarily 
on actual shrinkage results from previous physical inventories. During 
2006, the inventory shrinkage reserve increased $16 million to $129 mil-
lion as of February 2, 2007.

Judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimate
We do not believe that our merchandise inventories are subject to significant 
risk of obsolescence in the near term, and we have the ability to adjust purchas-
ing practices based on anticipated sales trends and general economic condi-
tions. However, changes in consumer purchasing patterns could result in 
the need for additional reserves. Likewise, changes in the estimated shrink 
reserve may be necessary, based on the results of physical inventories.

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions
Although we believe that we have sufficient current and historical 
knowledge to record reasonable estimates for both of these inventory 
reserves, it is possible that actual results could differ from recorded reserves. 
A 10% change in our obsolete inventory reserve would have affected net 
earnings by approximately $4 million for 2006. A 10% change in our esti-
mated shrinkage reserve would have affected net earnings by approximately 
$8 million for 2006.

Vendor Funds
Description
We receive funds from vendors in the normal course of business, principally 
as a result of purchase volumes, sales, early payments, or promotions of 
vendors’ products. 
 Under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-16 (EITF 02-16), 
“Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration 
Received from a Vendor,” vendor funds are treated as a reduction of inventory 
cost, unless they represent a reimbursement of specific, incremental and 
identifiable costs incurred by the customer to sell the vendor’s product. 
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Substantially all of the vendor funds that we receive do not meet the specific, 
incremental and identifiable criteria in EITF 02-16. Therefore, we treat the 
majority of these funds as a reduction in the cost of inventory as the 
amounts are earned and recognize these funds as a reduction of cost of sales 
when the inventory is sold.  

Judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimate
Based on the provisions of the vendor agreements in place, we develop 
vendor fund accrual rates by estimating the point at which we will have 
completed our performance under the agreement and the amounts will be 
earned. During the year, due to the complexity and diversity of the indi-
vidual vendor agreements, we perform analyses and review historical 
trends to ensure the amounts earned are appropriately recorded. As a part 
of these analyses, we validate our accrual rates based on actual purchase 
trends and apply those rates to actual purchase volumes to determine 
the amount of funds accrued and receivable from the vendor. Amounts 
accrued throughout the year could be impacted if actual purchase vol-
umes differ from projected annual purchase volumes, especially in the 
case of programs that provide for increased funding when graduated 
purchase volumes are met. 

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions
If actual results are not consistent with the assumptions and estimates 
used, we could be exposed to additional adjustments that could positively or 
negatively impact gross margin and inventory. However, substantially all 
receivables associated with these activities are collected within the follow-
ing fiscal year and therefore do not require subjective long-term estimates. 
Adjustments to gross margin and inventory in the following fiscal year 
have historically not been material.

Self-Insurance
Description
We are self-insured for certain losses relating to workers’ compensation, 
automobile, property, general and product liability, and certain medical 
and dental claims. Self-insurance claims filed and claims incurred but not 
reported are accrued based upon our estimates of the discounted ultimate 
cost for self-insured claims incurred using actuarial assumptions followed 
in the insurance industry and historical experience. During 2006, our self-
insurance liability increased $79 million to $650 million as of February 2, 
2007, as a result of an increase in the number of stores and employees.

Judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimate 
These estimates are subject to changes in the utilized discount rate, pay-
roll, sales and vehicle units, as well as the frequency and severity of claims. 

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions
Although we believe that we have the ability to adequately record estimated 
losses related to claims, it is possible that actual results could differ from 
recorded self-insurance liabilities. A 10% change in our self-insurance 
liability would have affected net earnings by approximately $40 million 
for 2006. A 1% change in our discount rate would have affected net earn-
ings by approximately $9 million for 2006.

Revenue Recognition
Description
See Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements for a complete  
discussion of our revenue recognition policies. The following accounting 
estimates relating to revenue recognition require management to make 
assumptions and apply judgment regarding the effects of future events that 
cannot be determined with certainty.

 Revenues from stored value cards, which include gift cards and 
returned merchandise credits, are deferred and recognized when the 
cards are redeemed. We recognize income from unredeemed stored 
value cards at the point at which redemption becomes remote. Our 
stored value cards have no expiration. Therefore, to determine when 
redemption is remote, we analyze an aging of the unredeemed cards, 
based on the date of last stored value card use. The deferred revenue 
associated with outstanding stored value cards increased $74 million 
to $367 million as of February 2, 2007.
 We sell separately-priced extended warranty contracts under a 
Lowe’s-branded program for which the Company is ultimately self-insured. 
We recognize revenues from extended warranty sales on a straight-line 
basis over the respective contract term due to a lack of sufficient historical 
evidence indicating that costs of performing services under the contracts 
are incurred on an other than straight-line basis as a result of the program 
being in its beginning stages. Extended warranty contract terms primarily 
range from one to four years from the date of purchase or the end of the 
manufacturer’s warranty, as applicable. We consistently group and 
evaluate extended warranty contracts based on the characteristics of the 
underlying products and the coverage provided in order to monitor for 
expected losses. A loss would be recognized if the expected costs of per-
forming services under the contracts exceeded the amount of unamortized 
acquisition costs and related deferred revenue associated with the contracts. 
Deferred revenues associated with the extended warranty contracts 
increased $109 million to $315 million as of February 2, 2007. The liability 
associated with unpaid extended warranty claims incurred was insignifi-
cant as of February 2, 2007 and February 3, 2006.
 We record a reserve for anticipated merchandise returns through a 
reduction of sales and costs of sales in the period that the related sales are 
recorded. We use historical return levels to estimate return rates, which 
are applied to sales during the estimated average return period. 
 

Judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimate 
There is judgment inherent in our evaluation of when the redemption 
of stored value cards becomes remote, and therefore, when the related 
income is recognized. 
 For extended warranties, there is judgment inherent in our evaluation 
of expected losses as a result of our methodology for grouping and evaluating 
extended warranty contracts and from the actuarial determination of the 
estimated cost of the contracts. There is also judgment inherent in our 
determination of the recognition pattern of costs of performing services 
under these contracts.
 There is judgment applied in our estimate of historical return levels 
and in the determination of the estimated average return period. 

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions
We do not anticipate that there will be a material change in the future estimates 
or assumptions we use to recognize income related to unredeemed stored 
value cards. However, if actual results are not consistent with our esti-
mates or assumptions, we may incur additional income or expense. A 10% 
change in the estimate of unredeemed stored value cards for which 
redemption is considered remote would have affected net earnings by 
approximately $2 million in 2006.
 We currently do not anticipate incurring any losses on our extended 
warranty contracts. Although we believe that we have the ability to adequately 
monitor and estimate expected losses under the extended warranty contracts, 
it is possible that actual results could differ from our estimates. In addition, 
if future evidence indicates that the costs of performing services under 
these contracts are incurred on other than a straight-line basis, the timing 
of revenue recognition under these contracts could change. A 10% change 
in the amount of revenue recognized in 2006 under these contracts would 
have affected net earnings by approximately $2 million.
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 Although we believe we have sufficient current and historical knowl-
edge to record reasonable estimates of sales returns, it is possible that actual 
returns could differ from recorded amounts. A 1% change in actual returns 
would have affected net earnings for 2006 by approximately $3 million. A 
1% change in the average return period would not have had a significant 
impact on net earnings for 2006.

OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth the percentage relationship to net sales of 
each line item of the consolidated statements of earnings, as well as the 
percentage change in dollar amounts from the prior year. This table should 
be read in conjunction with the following discussion and analysis and 
the consolidated financial statements, including the related notes to the 
consolidated financial statements.
 

       Basis Point Percentage 
       Increase/ Increase/ 
       (Decrease) (Decrease) 
       in Percentage in Dollar 
       of Net Sales Amounts 
       from  from 
       Prior Year1 Prior Year1

       2006 vs. 2006 vs. 
     2006 2005 2005 2005
Net sales  100.00% 100.00% N/A 9%
Gross margin 34.52 34.20 32 10
Expenses:
Selling, general  
 and administrative 20.75 20.84 (9) 8
Store opening costs 0.31 0.33 (2) 3
Depreciation 2.48 2.27 21 19
Interest – net 0.33 0.37 (4) (3)
Total expenses 23.87 23.81 6 9
Pre-tax earnings 10.65 10.39 26 11
Income tax provision 4.03 4.00 3 9
Net earnings 6.62% 6.39% 23 12%

       Basis Point Percentage 
       Increase/ Increase/ 
       (Decrease) (Decrease) 
       in Percentage in Dollar 
       of Net Sales Amounts 
       from  from 
       Prior Year1 Prior Year1

       2005 vs. 2005 vs. 
     2005 2004 2004 2004
Net sales  100.00% 100.00% N/A 19%
Gross margin 34.20 33.56 64 21
Expenses:
Selling, general  
 and administrative 20.84 20.74 10 19
Store opening costs 0.33 0.34 (1) 15
Depreciation 2.27 2.35 (8) 14
Interest – net 0.37 0.48 (11) (10)
Total expenses 23.81 23.91 (10) 18
Pre-tax earnings 10.39 9.65 74 28
Income tax provision 4.00 3.71 29 28
Net earnings 6.39% 5.94% 45 28%

Other Metrics  2006 2005 2004
Comparable store  
 sales increases2  0.0% 6.1% 6.6%
Customer transactions (in millions)1 680 639 575
Average ticket1,3  $ 68.98 $ 67.67 $ 63.43

At end of year:
Number of stores  1,385 1,234 1,087
Sales floor square feet (in millions) 157 140 124
Average store size selling 
 square feet (in thousands)  113 113 114
Return on beginning assets1,4  12.6% 13.1% 11.6%
Return on beginning  
 shareholders’ equity1,5  21.7% 24.0% 21.3%
1   The fiscal years ended February 2, 2007 and January 28, 2005 had 52 weeks. The fiscal year 

ended February 3, 2006 had 53 weeks.
2   We define a comparable store as a store that has been open longer than 13 months. A store that 

is identified for relocation is no longer considered comparable one month prior to its relocation. 
The relocated store must then remain open longer than 13 months to be considered comparable. 
The comparable store sales increase for 2006 included in the preceding table was calculated using 
sales for a comparable 52-week period, while the comparable store sales increase for 2005 was 
calculated using sales for a comparable 53-week period.

3   We define average ticket as net sales divided by number of customer transactions.
4   Return on beginning assets is defined as net earnings divided by beginning total assets.
5   Return on beginning shareholders’ equity is defined as net earnings divided by beginning 

shareholders’ equity.

Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005
For the purpose of the following discussion, comparable store sales, 
comparable store average ticket and comparable store customer transac-
tions are based on comparable 52-week periods.

Net sales 
Our continued focus on executing the fundamentals and providing cus-
tomer-valued solutions together with our store expansion program 
drove sales of $46.9 billion in 2006. We opened 155 stores in 2006, 
including four relocations, and ended the year with 1,385 stores in 49 states. 
The additional week in 2005 resulted in approximately $750 million in 
additional net sales in 2005. Excluding the additional week, net sales 
would have increased approximately 10% in 2006. 
 Comparable store sales were flat in 2006 versus a comparable store 
sales increase of 6.1% in 2005. Average ticket for comparable stores 
increased slightly versus the prior year, but comparable store customer 
transactions declined slightly. 
 Although nine of our 21 regions had comparable store sales increases 
for 2006, sales in many areas of the country were pressured by the slowdown 
in the housing market. Markets in the Northeast, Florida and California 
were most exposed to the slowdown in housing in 2006. Sales trends in 
those areas clearly indicated a cautious home improvement consumer. 
Also, areas of the Gulf Coast and Florida, which experienced increased 
demand in 2005 related to rebuilding from the hurricanes, experienced 
comparable store sales declines in the second half of 2006. We expect the 
difficult sales comparisons to ease in the second half of 2007 as we pass 
the second anniversary of Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma. 
 Reflective of the difficult sales environment, only 11 of our 20 product 
categories experienced comparable store sales increases in 2006. The 
categories that performed above our average comparable store sales change 
included rough plumbing, building materials, rough electrical, home 
environment, paint, fashion plumbing, flooring, nursery, seasonal living, 
and lawn & landscape products. In addition, hardware performed at 
approximately our average comparable store sales change in 2006. Despite 
the difficult sales environment, we were able to gain unit market share in 
all of our 20 product categories versus the prior calendar year, according 
to third-party estimates. 
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 Outdoor power equipment and lumber experienced the greatest 
comparable store sales declines in 2006. Comparable store generator sales 
were down 34% for the year, compared to strong sales driven by the 2005 
hurricanes. Additionally, a warmer than normal winter led to comparable 
store sales declines for snow throwers. However, despite the difficult sales 
environment, we experienced a 2% unit market share gain in outdoor 
power equipment in calendar year 2006. Lumber and plywood experienced 
more than 15% cost deflation and similar retail price deflation in 2006. 
 Our Big 3 Specialty Sales initiatives had mixed results in 2006. A 
hesitation to take on large projects by some consumers had an impact 
on our Installed Sales and Special Order Sales in the second half of 2006. 
Installed Sales increased 9% over 2005. Our Installed Sales consist of both 
stock and special order product for which we arrange installation for our 
customers. Special Order Sales increased 5% over 2005. In contrast, sales 
growth for Commercial Business Customers was nearly double the 
Company average.

Gross margin
For 2006, gross margin of 34.52% represented a 32-basis-point increase 
over 2005. This increase as a percentage of sales was primarily due to 
positive product mix shifts and a greater proportion of imported goods, 
which typically have lower acquisition costs. For 2006, we imported 
approximately 11% of our goods compared to approximately 9.5% in the 
prior year. These items were slightly offset by higher inventory shrink as 
a percentage of sales.

SG&A 
The decrease in SG&A as a percentage of sales from 2005 to 2006 was 
primarily due to lower expenses related to bonus and retirement plans. 
Our performance-based bonus and retirement expenses fluctuate with 
our sales and earnings performance relative to plan, and decreased approxi-
mately $200 million or 50 basis points in 2006. In addition, insurance 
expense leveraged 12 basis points in 2006, a result of our ongoing safety 
initiatives and the benefits of regulatory changes in certain states, which 
contributed to actuarial projections of lower costs to settle claims. These 
items were partially offset by de-leverage in store payroll. As sales slowed 
throughout the year, our stores adjusted their hours accordingly. However, 
because of our base staffing requirements and customer service standards, 
we chose not to reduce payroll at the same rate as sales.

Store opening costs 
Store opening costs, which include payroll and supply costs incurred prior 
to store opening as well as grand opening advertising costs, totaled $146 
million in 2006 compared to $142 million in 2005. These costs are associ-
ated with the opening of 155 stores in 2006 (151 new and four relocated), 
as compared with the opening of 150 stores in 2005 (147 new and three 
relocated). Store opening costs for stores opened during the year averaged 
approximately $0.9 million per store in 2006 and 2005. Because store 
opening costs are expensed as incurred, the timing of expense recognition 
fluctuates based on the timing of store openings.

Depreciation 
Depreciation de-leveraged 21 basis points as a percentage of sales in 2006. 
This de-leverage was driven by growth in assets and the softer sales envi-
ronment. At February 2, 2007, we owned 86% of our stores, compared to 
84% at February 3, 2006, which includes stores on leased land. Property, 
less accumulated depreciation, increased to $19.0 billion at February 2, 
2007, compared to $16.4 billion at February 3, 2006. The increase in prop-
erty resulted primarily from our store expansion program as well as our 
remerchandising efforts. 

Interest 
Net interest expense is comprised of the following:

(In millions)   2006 2005
Interest expense, net of amount capitalized  $200 $186
Amortization of original issue discount and loan costs 6 17
Interest income  (52) (45)
Net interest expense  $154 $158

 Interest expense increased primarily due to the October 2006 $1 billion 
debt issuance, partially offset by lower interest expense on convertible debt 
due to conversions during 2006. Interest expense relating to capital leases 
was $34 million for 2006 and $39 million for 2005. Amortization of loan 
costs decreased in 2006 versus the prior year as a result of increased 
debt conversions.

Income tax provision 
Our effective income tax rate was 37.9% in 2006 versus 38.5% in 2005. 
The decrease in the effective tax rate was the result of increased federal 
tax credits associated with Welfare to Work and Work Opportunity Tax 
Credit programs and increased state tax credits related to our investments 
in employees and property. 

Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004
For the purpose of the following discussion, comparable store sales, 
comparable store average ticket and comparable store customer transac-
tions are based on comparable 53-week periods.

Net sales 
Comparable store sales, our ongoing store expansion and relocation  
program and continued growth in our Specialty Sales initiatives were  
key drivers of our sales increase in 2005. We opened 150 stores in 2005, 
including three relocations, and ended the year with stores in 49 states, 
including our first stores in New Hampshire. The additional week in 
2005 resulted in approximately $750 million in sales and impacted 2005 
sales growth by about 2.1%. 
 The comparable store sales increase of 6.1% in 2005 was on top of com-
parable store sales increases of 6.6% in 2004 and 6.7% in 2003. The comparable 
store sales increase in 2005 was driven by increases in both average ticket 
and transactions. Average ticket for comparable stores increased 6.1% and 
comparable store customer transactions increased slightly. 
 We experienced comparable store sales increases in every product 
category for 2005. The categories that performed above our average com-
parable store sales increase for 2005 included millwork, rough plumbing, 
building materials, rough electrical, outdoor power equipment, appliances, 
home environment, paint, flooring and cabinets & countertops. In addition, 
hardware and fashion plumbing performed at approximately the average 
comparable store sales increase. Inflation in lumber and building materials 
favorably impacted comparable store sales for 2005 by approximately 50 
basis points, driven by gypsum, roofing and cement products. We also 
continued to gain market share in key product categories previously dom-
inated by other channels, including appliances, outdoor power equipment 
and cabinets & countertops. 
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 The appliance category delivered a double-digit comparable store sales 
increase for 2005. According to independent measures, we increased our 
unit market share in major appliances by 130 basis points for calendar 
year 2005 versus calendar year 2004. Our success in appliances is a func-
tion of our brand selection and knowledgeable sales specialists. The 
introduction of Samsung digital appliances in 2005 was evidence of our 
commitment to enhance our brand selection and competitive offering. 
 We experienced a double-digit comparable store sales increase for 
2005 in cabinets & countertops, which was driven by emphasis on our 
product offering, as well as a focus on our Installed Sales initiative, which 
plays a key role in driving cabinets & countertops sales. 
 Outdoor power equipment delivered a high single-digit comparable 
store sales increase for the year. According to independent measures, we 
increased our outdoor power equipment unit market share by 190 basis 
points for calendar year 2005 versus calendar year 2004. 
 We also experienced comparable store sales increases in 18 of the 21 
geographic regions. We continued to experience strong sales in Florida 
and the Gulf Coast regions as customers repaired the damage caused by 
the hurricanes in 2005 and 2004. We experienced comparable store sales 
decreases in two Northeastern regions that had a slow, weather-affected 
start in the first quarter and never fully recovered. In addition, certain 
areas of our North Central division suffered from headline-making layoffs 
and plant closings, which contributed to these decreases in comparable 
store sales. 
 The growth in our Big 3 Specialty Sales initiatives also drove our sales 
increase in 2005. Our focus on execution under our Installed Sales model 
led to a 31% increase in Installed Sales over 2004. Our growth in 2005 was 
driven by sales in cabinets & countertops, flooring and millwork. Special 
Order Sales increased 25% over 2004. Finally, we experienced significant 
sales growth from Commercial Business Customers. Strengthening cus-
tomer relationships, supported by targeted marketing and market-specific 
merchandising assortments, continued to drive this part of our business. 

Gross margin 
For 2005, gross margin of 34.20% represented a 64-basis-point increase 
over 2004. Approximately 40 basis points of the increase in gross margin 
as a percentage of sales for 2005 was due to the impact of the implemen-
tation of EITF 02-16 as it related to cooperative advertising and in-store 
services, which reduced gross margin in 2004 as these funds were capital-
ized into inventory and recognized in income when the product was sold. 
The increase in 2005 gross margin was also driven by growth in imported 
goods, improvements in inventory shrink and a positive sales mix. 

SG&A 
The increase in SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales from 2004 to 
2005 was primarily due to increased 401(k) performance match contri-
butions as a percentage of sales resulting from our increased profitability 
in 2005. In addition, there were increases as a percentage of sales in store 
remerchandising expense, which resulted from our continued invest-
ment in existing stores, and rent expense, as we continue to expand into 
metropolitan markets. These increases were partially offset by a decrease 
in vendor-provided store-service costs as a percentage of sales. Our 
ongoing evaluation of in-store vendor service expense allowed us to 
appropriately adjust the level of vendor service in our stores, which led to 
the decrease as a percentage of sales. In addition, although there was an 
increase in advertising expense compared to 2004, we were able to enhance 
messaging and refine our marketing mix to make our advertising programs 
more productive, thereby resulting in the leverage of advertising expense 
as a percentage of sales in 2005. 

Store opening costs 
Store opening costs totaled $142 million in 2005 compared to $123 million 
in 2004. These costs are associated with the opening of 150 stores in 2005 
(147 new and three relocated), as compared with the opening of 140 stores 
in 2004 (136 new and four relocated). Store opening costs for stores opened 
during the year averaged approximately $0.9 million per store in 2005 and 
2004. Because store opening costs are expensed as incurred, the timing of 
expense recognition may fluctuate based on the timing of store openings.

Depreciation  
Depreciation leveraged eight basis points as a percentage of sales in 2005. 
At February 3, 2006, we owned 84% of our stores, compared to 81% at 
January 28, 2005, which includes stores on leased land. Property, less accu-
mulated depreciation, increased to $16.4 billion at February 3, 2006, com-
pared to $13.9 billion at January 28, 2005. The increase in property 
resulted primarily from our store expansion program and an additional 
investment in information technology. 

Interest 
Net interest expense was comprised of the following:

(In millions)   2005 2004
Interest expense, net of amount capitalized  $186 $172
Amortization of original issue discount and loan costs 17 20
Interest income  (45) (16)
Net interest expense  $158 $176

 Interest expense increased primarily due to the October 2005 $1 billion 
debt issuance, partially offset by lower interest expense on convertible debt 
due to conversions during 2005. Interest expense relating to capital leases was 
$39 million for 2005 and $38 million for 2004. Interest income increased 
primarily due to the investment of a portion of the proceeds from the 
October 2005 $1 billion debt issuance. 

Income tax provision 
Our effective income tax rate was 38.5% in 2005 and 2004.  

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
We believe in our potential for long-term growth and profitability, and 
while we are focused on growing sales and earnings, we are also focused 
on cash flow. By making working capital improvements, we expect cash 
flow from operations to grow faster than earnings. Our long-term goal 
is to grow inventory at 75% of sales growth. Our largest initiative over 
the past couple of years was R3, which encompassed numerous supply 
chain enhancements that would allow us to more effectively and efficiently 
move product to our stores in changing demand environments. That 
platform is firmly in place and is now our standard operating model. 
In 2006, sales increased 8.5%, while inventory growth was 7.7%. The 
increase in our inventory balance from 2005 to 2006 was the result of 
new or non-comparable stores. Both comparable stores and distribution 
center inventories were down slightly versus the prior year. In addition, 
we are focused on improving working capital through increased days 
payable outstanding.
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Cash Flows
The following table summarizes the components of the consolidated 
statements of cash flows. This table should be read in conjunction with the 
following discussion and analysis and the consolidated financial statements, 
including the related notes to the consolidated financial statements:

(In millions)  2006 2005 2004
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 4,502 $ 3,842 $ 3,073
Net cash used in investing activities (3,715) (3,674) (2,362)
Net cash used in financing activities (846) (275) (1,047)
Net decrease in cash and  
 cash equivalents (59) (107) (336)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 423 530 866
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $  364 $   423 $   530

 Cash flows from operating activities provide a significant source of 
our liquidity. The increase in cash provided by operating activities in 2006 
compared to 2005 resulted primarily from increased net earnings and 
increased days payable outstanding, partially offset by the timing of tax 
payments and a decline in deferred revenue associated with Specialty 
Sales. The increase in cash provided by operating activities in 2005 com-
pared to 2004 resulted primarily from increased net earnings as well as 
a lower investment in inventory compared to 2004. Working capital at 
February 2, 2007, was $1.8 billion compared to $2.0 billion at February 3, 
2006. The decrease in working capital was due primarily to increased 
days payable outstanding.
 The primary component of net cash used in investing activities 
continues to be opening new stores, investing in existing stores through 
resets and remerchandising, and investing in our distribution center and 
information technology infrastructure. Cash acquisitions of fixed assets 
were $3.9 billion for 2006, $3.4 billion in 2005 and $2.9 billion in 2004. 
The February 2, 2007, retail selling space of 157 million square feet rep-
resented a 12% increase over February 3, 2006. The February 3, 2006, 
retail selling space of 140 million square feet represented a 13% increase 
over January 28, 2005. 
 The increase in cash used in financing activities in 2006 compared to 
2005 resulted primarily from greater repurchases of common stock under 
our share repurchase program. The decrease in cash used in financing 
activities in 2005 compared to 2004 resulted primarily from the proceeds 
from the October 2005 issuance of $1 billion in senior notes and fewer 
share repurchases, offset by greater scheduled debt repayments. The ratio 
of debt to equity plus debt was 22.0% and 19.8% as of the years ended 2006 
and 2005, respectively.

Sources of Liquidity
In addition to our cash flows from operations, we have a $1 billion senior 
credit facility that expires in July 2009 that also provides a source of 
liquidity. The facility is available to support our commercial paper pro-
gram and for direct borrowings. Borrowings made are priced based upon 
market conditions at the time of funding in accordance with the terms of 
the senior credit facility. The senior credit facility contains certain restric-
tive covenants, which include maintenance of a debt leverage ratio as 
defined by the facility. We were in compliance with those covenants at 
February 2, 2007 and February 3, 2006. Fifteen banking institutions are 
participating in the $1 billion senior credit facility. As of February 2, 2007, 
we had $23 million outstanding under the senior credit facility, but no 
outstanding borrowings under our commercial paper program. The 
interest rate on the short-term borrowings was 5.4%. As of February 3, 
2006, there were no outstanding borrowings under the senior credit 
facility or under our commercial paper program.
 Five banks have extended lines of credit aggregating $486 million for 
the purpose of issuing documentary letters of credit and standby letters 
of credit. These lines do not have termination dates and are reviewed 

periodically. Commitment fees ranging from .225% to .50% per annum 
are paid on the letters of credit amounts outstanding. Outstanding letters 
of credit totaled $346 million as of February 2, 2007, and $316 million as 
of February 3, 2006.

Cash Requirements
Our 2007 capital budget is $4.6 billion, inclusive of approximately  
$300 million of lease commitments, resulting in a net cash outflow of $4.3 
billion in 2007. Approximately 81% of this planned commitment is for 
store expansion and new distribution centers. Expansion plans for 2007 
consist of 150 to 160 stores, including 4 relocations of older stores. This 
planned expansion is expected to increase sales floor square footage by 
approximately 11%. All of the 2007 projects will be owned, which 
includes approximately 32% that will be ground-leased properties. 
 On February 2, 2007, we owned and operated 11 regional distribution 
centers (RDCs). We expect to open additional RDCs in Rockford, Illinois, 
and Lebanon, Oregon, in 2007, and are planning for an additional RDC 
in 2008. On February 2, 2007, we also operated 13 flatbed distribution 
centers for the handling of lumber, building materials and other long-
length items. We owned 12 of these flatbed distribution centers, and we 
leased one flatbed distribution center. We expect to open two additional 
flatbed distribution centers in 2007.
 In October 2006, we issued an additional $1 billion of unsecured 
senior notes, comprised of two tranches: $550 million of 5.4% senior 
notes maturing in October 2016 and $450 million of 5.8% senior notes 
maturing in October 2036. Interest on the senior notes is payable semi-
annually in arrears in April and October of each year until maturity, 
beginning in April 2007. 
 From their issuance through the end of 2006, principal amounts of 
$967 million, or approximately 96% of our February 2001 convertible notes, 
had converted from debt to equity. In 2006, $118 million in principal 
amounts converted.
 Holders of the senior convertible notes, issued in October 2001, may 
convert their notes into 34.424 shares of the company’s common stock 
only if: the sale price of the company’s common stock reaches specified 
thresholds, or the credit rating of the notes is below a specified level, or 
the notes are called for redemption, or specified corporate transactions 
representing a change in control have occurred. There is no indication 
that we will not be able to maintain the minimum investment grade 
rating. From their issuance through the end of 2006, an insignificant 
amount of the senior convertible notes had converted from debt to equity. 
During the fourth quarter of 2006, our closing share prices reached the 
specified threshold such that the senior convertible notes are convertible 
at the option of each holder into shares of common stock in the first 
quarter of 2007. Cash interest payments on the senior convertible notes 
ceased in October 2006. We may redeem for cash all or a portion of the 
notes at any time, at a price equal to the sum of the issue price plus 
accrued original issue discount on the redemption date. 
 Our debt ratings at February 2, 2007, were as follows:

Current Debt Ratings S&P Moody’s Fitch
Commercial paper A1 P1 F1+
Senior debt A+ A1 A+
Outlook Stable Stable Stable

 We believe that net cash provided by operating activities and financing 
activities will be adequate for our expansion plans and other operating 
requirements over the next 12 months. However, the availability of funds 
through the issuance of commercial paper and new debt could be adversely 
affected due to a debt rating downgrade or a deterioration of certain financial 
ratios. There are no provisions in any agreements that would require early 
cash settlement of existing debt or leases as a result of a downgrade in our 
debt rating or a decrease in our stock price. 
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Our quarterly cash dividend was increased in 2006 to $.05 per share. 
 In January 2005, the Board of Directors authorized up to $1 billion in 
share repurchases through 2006. In January and August 2006, the Board 
of Directors authorized up to an additional $1 billion and $2 billion in 
share repurchases through 2007 and 2008, respectively. This program is 
implemented through purchases made from time to time either in the 
open market or through private transactions. Shares purchased under the 
share repurchase program are retired and returned to authorized and 
unissued status. During 2006, the Company repurchased 56.8 million shares 
at a total cost of $1.7 billion. As of February 2, 2007, the total remaining 
authorization under the share repurchase program was $1.5 billion.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
Other than in connection with executing operating leases, we do not have 
any off-balance sheet financing that has, or is reasonably likely to have, a 
material, current or future effect on our financial condition, cash flows, 
results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND  
COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS
The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations 
and commercial commitments:

 Payments Due by Period
Contractual Obligations  Less than 1-3 4-5 After 5  
(In millions)  Total 1 year years years years
Long-term debt (principal  
  and interest amounts,  

excluding discount) $     7,865 $       281 $       438 $      870 $        6,276
Capital lease obligations1 644 62 124 123 335
Operating leases1 5,527 323 645 642 3,917
Purchase obligations2 2,307 1,079 834 382 12
Total contractual 
 obligations $ 16,343 $ 1,745 $ 2,041 $2,017 $ 10,540

 Amount of Commitment Expiration by Period
Commercial Commitments  Less than 1-3 4-5 After 5  
(In millions)  Total 1 year years years years
Letters of credit3 $     346 $    344 $      2 $     – $       –
1   Amounts do not include taxes, common area maintenance, insurance or contingent rent because 

these amounts have historically been insignificant.
2   Represents contracts for purchases of merchandise inventory, property and construction of buildings, 

as well as commitments related to certain marketing and information technology programs.
3   Letters of credit are issued for the purchase of import merchandise inventories, real estate and 

construction contracts, and insurance programs.

COMPANY OUTLOOK
As of February 23, 2007, the date of our fourth quarter 2006 earnings 
release, we expected to open 150 to 160 stores during 2007, resulting in 
total square footage growth of approximately 11%. We expected total 
sales to increase approximately 10% and comparable store sales to be 
approximately flat to up 2%. Operating margin, defined as gross margin 
less SG&A and depreciation, was expected to decline 70 to 80 basis 
points. In addition, store opening costs were expected to be approxi-
mately $140 to $145 million. Diluted earnings per share of $2.02 to $2.09 
were expected for the fiscal year ending February 1, 2008.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES  
ABOUT MARKET RISK
Our primary market risk exposure is the potential loss arising from the 
impact of changing interest rates on long-term debt. Our policy is to 
monitor the interest rate risks associated with this debt, and we believe 
any significant risks could be offset by accessing variable rate instru-
ments available through our lines of credit. The following tables summa-
rize our market risks associated with long-term debt, excluding capital 
leases and other. The tables present principal cash outflows and related 
interest rates by year of maturity, excluding unamortized original issue 
discounts as of February 2, 2007, and February 3, 2006. Variable interest 
rates are based on the weighted-average rates of the portfolio at the end 
of the year presented. The fair values included below were determined 
using quoted market rates or interest rates that are currently available to 
us on debt with similar terms and remaining maturities.

Long-Term Debt Maturities by Fiscal Year 
February 2, 2007

      Average  Average 
     Fixed Interest Variable Interest 
(Dollars in millions) Rate Rate Rate Rate
2007    $      59 7.24% $ 2 6.57%
2008    7 7.84 – –
2009    1 5.96 – –
2010    501 8.25 – –
2011    1 7.50 – –
Thereafter  3,570 5.02% – –
Total    $ 4,139  $ 2
Fair value  $ 4,299  $ 2

Long-Term Debt Maturities by Fiscal Year 
February 3, 2006

      Average  Average 
     Fixed Interest Variable Interest 
(Dollars in millions) Rate Rate Rate Rate
2006    $     5 7.58% $ 2 5.82%
2007    59 7.25 2 5.82
2008    7 7.84 – –
2009    1 7.49 – –
2010    501 8.25 – –
Thereafter  2,691 4.70% – –
Total    $ 3,264  $ 4
Fair value  $ 3,574  $ 4
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Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

We speak throughout this Annual Report about our future, particularly in 
the “Letter to Shareholders” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” While we believe our estimates 
and expectations are reasonable, they are not guarantees of future performance. 
Our actual results could differ substantially from our expectations because, 
for example:

•  Our sales are dependent upon the health and stability of the general 
economy. We monitor key economic indicators including disposable  
personal income, employment growth, housing turnover, and homeowner-
ship levels. In addition, changes in the level of repairs, remodeling and 
additions to existing homes, changes in commercial building activity, 
and the availability and cost of financing can impact our business.

•  Major weather-related events and unseasonable weather, particularly 
wet and cold weather during the spring and early summer months, may 
impact sales of seasonal merchandise and products designed for outdoor 
use on a short-term basis.

•  Our expansion strategy may be impacted by environmental regulations, 
local zoning issues, availability and development of land, and more stringent 
land use regulations. Furthermore, our ability to secure a highly-qualified 
workforce is an important element to the success of our expansion strategy.

•  Our business is highly competitive, and as we build an increasing percentage 
of our new stores in larger markets and utilize new sales channels such as 
the internet, we may face new and additional forms of competition.

•  The ability to continue our everyday low pricing strategy and provide 
the products that customers want depends on our vendors providing a 
reliable supply of products at competitive prices and our ability to effec-
tively manage our inventory. As an increasing number of the products 
we sell are imported, any restrictions or limitations on importation of 
such products, political or financial instability in some of the countries 
from which we import them, or a failure to comply with laws and regulation 
of those countries from which we import them, could interrupt our supply 
of imported inventory.

•  Our goal of increasing our market share and our commitment to keeping 
our prices low require us to make substantial investments in new 
technology and processes whose benefits could take longer than expected 
to be realized and which can be difficult to implement and integrate.

For more information about these and other risks and uncertainties that we 
are exposed to, you should read the “Risk Factors” included in our Annual 
Report on Form 10-K to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 
All forward-looking statements in this report speak only as of the date of this 
report or, in the case of any document incorporated by reference, the date of 
that document. All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements 
attributable to us or any person acting on our behalf are qualified by the cau-
tionary statements in this section and in the “Risk Factors” included in our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. We do not undertake any obligation to update 
or publicly release any revisions to forward-looking statements to reflect 
events, circumstances or changes in expectations after the date of this report.

Management of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting (Internal Control) as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Our Internal Control was designed to 
provide reasonable assurance to our management and the board of directors 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation and fair 
presentation of published financial statements.  

 All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent 
limitations, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention 
or overriding of controls. Therefore, even those systems determined to be 
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to the reliability 
of financial reporting and financial statement preparation and presentation. 
Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness may vary  
over time. 

 Our management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our Internal Control 
as of February 2, 2007. In evaluating our Internal Control, we used the criteria 
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO) in Internal Control – Integrated Framework. Based on 
our management’s assessment, we have concluded that, as of February 2, 2007, 
our Internal Control is effective.
 Deloitte & Touche, LLP, the independent registered public accounting 
firm that audited the financial statements contained in this report, has issued 
an attestation report on our management’s assessment of our Internal Control. 
This report appears on page 27.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 
Mooresville, North Carolina

 We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Lowe’s 
Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of February 2, 2007 
and February 3, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, 
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the 
period ended February 2, 2007. These financial statements are the responsi-
bility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
  We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe 
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

  In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of the Company at February 2, 2007 
and February 3, 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each 
of the three fiscal years in the period ended February 2, 2007, in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
  We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of February 2, 
2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission and our report dated April 3, 2007 expressed an 
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over finan-
cial reporting.

Charlotte, North Carolina
April 3, 2007

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 
Mooresville, North Carolina

 We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying 
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting included 
on page 26, that Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) 
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 2, 
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission.  The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.  Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based 
on our audit.
  We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 
material respects.  Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal 
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing 
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circum-
stances.  We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
  A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed 
by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive and principal 
financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the 
company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles.  A company’s internal control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only 
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
 Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be 
prevented or detected on a timely basis.  Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

  In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained 
effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 2, 2007, is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in Internal 
Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.  Also in our opinion, the Company 
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of February 2, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal 
Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
 We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company 
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial state-
ments as of and for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2007 of the Company 
and our report dated April 3, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those 
financial statements.

Charlotte, North Carolina
April 3, 2007

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm



Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Earnings

(In millions, except per share and percentage data) February 2, % February 3, % January 28, %
Fiscal years ended on 2007 Sales 2006 Sales 2005 Sales

Net sales (Note 1) $ 46,927  100.00% $ 43,243  100.00% $ 36,464  100.00%
Cost of sales (Notes 1 and 15)  30,729  65.48  28,453  65.80  24,224  66.44
Gross margin  16,198  34.52  14,790  34.20  12,240  33.56
Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative (Notes 1, 4 and 9)  9,738  20.75  9,014  20.84  7,562  20.74
Store opening costs (Note 1)  146  0.31  142  0.33  123  0.34
Depreciation (Notes 1 and 3)  1,162  2.48  980  2.27  859  2.35
Interest – net (Note 16)  154  0.33  158  0.37  176  0.48
Total expenses  11,200  23.87  10,294  23.81  8,720  23.91
Pre-tax earnings  4,998  10.65  4,496  10.39  3,520  9.65
Income tax provision (Note 11)  1,893  4.03  1,731  4.00  1,353  3.71
Net earnings  $ 3,105  6.62% $ 2,765  6.39% $ 2,167  5.94%

Basic earnings per share (Note 12) $ 2.02   $ 1.78   $ 1.39
Diluted earnings per share (Note 12) $ 1.99   $ 1.73   $ 1.35
Cash dividends per share $ 0.18   $ 0.11   $ 0.08

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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       February 2, % February 3, %
(In millions, except per value and percentage data)   2007 Total 2006 Total

Assets
 Current assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1)     $ 364  1.3% $ 423  1.7%
  Short-term investments (Notes 1 and 2)     432  1.6  453  1.8
  Merchandise inventory – net (Note 1)      7,144  25.7  6,635  27.0
  Deferred income taxes – net (Note 11)      161  0.6  155  0.6
  Other current assets      213  0.8  122  0.5
  Total current assets      8,314  30.0  7,788  31.6
  Property, less accumulated depreciation (Notes 3 and 4)    18,971  68.3  16,354  66.4
  Long-term investments (Notes 1 and 2)      165  0.6  294  1.2
  Other assets (Notes 1 and 4)      317  1.1  203  0.8
  Total assets     $ 27,767  100.0% $ 24,639  100.0%

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
 Current liabilities:
  Short-term borrowings (Note 5)     $ 23  0.1% $ –  –%
  Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 6)     88  0.3  32  0.1
  Accounts payable      3,524  12.7  2,832  11.6
  Accrued salaries and wages      372  1.3  424  1.7
  Self-insurance liabilities (Note 1)      650  2.4  571  2.3
  Deferred revenue (Note 1)      731  2.6  709  2.9
  Other current liabilities (Notes 1 and 4)     1,151  4.1  1,264  5.1
  Total current liabilities      6,539  23.5  5,832  23.7
  Long-term debt, excluding current maturities (Notes 6, 7 and 13)   4,325  15.6  3,499  14.2
  Deferred income taxes –net (Note 11)      735  2.7  735  3.0
  Other long-term liabilities (Note 1)      443  1.6  277  1.1
  Total liabilities      12,042  43.4  10,343  42.0

  Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)

 Shareholders’ equity (Note 8):
  Preferred stock – $5 par value, none issued     –  –  –  –
   Common stock – $.50 par value; 

  Shares issued and outstanding
   February 2, 2007 1,525 
   February 3, 2006  1,568     762  2.7  784  3.2
  Capital in excess of par value      102  0.4  1,320  5.3
  Retained earnings      14,860  53.5  12,191  49.5
  Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 1)    1  –  1  –
  Total shareholders’ equity      15,725  56.6  14,296  58.0
  Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity    $ 27,767  100.0% $ 24,639  100.0%

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets



Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

         Accumulated
       Capital in  Other Total
     Common Stock  Excess of Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
(In millions)   Shares Amount Par Value Earnings Income Equity

Balance January 30, 2004 1,574.7 $787 $1,854 $ 7,546 $ 1 $10,188

Comprehensive income (Note 1):
 Net earnings    2,167
 Net unrealized investment losses     (1)
Total comprehensive income      2,166
Tax effect of non-qualified stock options exercised   33   33
Cash dividends    (116)  (116)
Share-based payment expense (Note 9)   70   70
Repurchase of common stock (Note 8) (36.9) (18) (982)   (1,000)
Conversion of debt to common stock (Note 6) 0.3  6   6
Employee stock options exercised and other (Note 9) 6.7 3 87   90
Employee stock purchase plan (Note 9) 2.7 2 59   61
Balance January 28, 2005 1,547.5 $774 $1,127 $ 9,597 $ – $11,498

Comprehensive income (Note 1):
 Net earnings    2,765
 Foreign currency translation     1
Total comprehensive income      2,766
Tax effect of non-qualified stock options exercised   59   59
Cash dividends    (171)  (171)
Share-based payment expense (Note 9)   76   76
Repurchase of common stock (Note 8) (25.0) (12) (762)   (774)
Conversion of debt to common stock (Note 6) 27.6 14 551   565
Employee stock options exercised and other (Note 9) 15.6 7 205   212
Employee stock purchase plan (Note 9) 2.5 1 64   65
Balance February 3, 2006 1,568.2 $784 $1,320 $12,191 $ 1 $14,296

Comprehensive income (Note 1):
 Net earnings    3,105
 Foreign currency translation     (2)
 Net unrealized investment gains (Note 2)     2
Total comprehensive income      3,105
Tax effect of non-qualified stock options exercised   21   21
Cash dividends    (276)  (276)
Share-based payment expense (Note 9)   59   59
Repurchase of common stock (Note 8) (56.8) (28) (1,549) (160)  (1,737)
Conversion of debt to common stock (Note 6) 3.9 2 80   82
Employee stock options exercised and other (Note 9) 6.6 3 96   99
Employee stock purchase plan (Note 9) 2.9 1 75   76
Balance February 2, 2007 1,524.8 $762 $    102 $14,860 $ 1 $15,725

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions) February 2, February 3, January 28,
Fiscal years ended on 2007 2006 2005

Cash flows from operating activities:
 Net earnings $ 3,105 $ 2,765 $ 2,167
 Adjustments to reconcile earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization  1,237  1,051  926
  Deferred income taxes  (6)  (37)  102
  Loss on disposition/writedown of fixed and other assets  23  31  55
  Share-based payment expense  62  76  70
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
   Merchandise inventory – net  (509)  (785)  (1,358)
   Other operating assets  (135)  (38)  156
   Accounts payable  692  137  483
   Other operating liabilities  33  642  472
 Net cash provided by operating activities  4,502  3,842  3,073

Cash flows from investing activities:
 Purchases of short-term investments  (284)  (1,829)  (1,180)
 Proceeds from sale/maturity of short-term investments  572  1,802  1,799
 Purchases of long-term investments  (558)  (354)  (156)
 Proceeds from sale/maturity of long-term investments  415  55  28
 Increase in other long-term assets  (16)  (30)  (12)
 Fixed assets acquired  (3,916)  (3,379)  (2,927)
 Proceeds from the sale of fixed and other long-term assets  72  61  86
 Net cash used in investing activities  (3,715)  (3,674)  (2,362)

Cash flows from financing activities:
 Net increase from short-term borrowings  23  –  –
 Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt   989  1,013  –
 Repayment of long-term debt  (33)  (633)  (82)
 Proceeds from issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan  76  65  61
 Proceeds from issuance of common stock from stock options exercised  100  225  90
 Cash dividend payments  (276)  (171)  (116)
 Repurchase of common stock  (1,737)  (774)  (1,000)
 Excess tax benefits of share-based payments  12  –  –
 Net cash used in financing activities  (846)  (275)  (1,047)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (59)  (107)  (336)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  423  530  866
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 364 $ 423 $ 530

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1   SuMMaRY OF SIgnIFICanT 
aCCOunTIng POLICIES

Lowe’s Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) is the world’s second-
largest home improvement retailer and operated 1,385 stores in 49 states 
at February 2, 2007. Below are those accounting policies considered to be 
significant by the Company.
 Fiscal Year – The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Friday nearest the 
end of January. The fiscal years ended February 2, 2007 and January 28, 2005 
had 52 weeks. The fiscal year ended February 3, 2006 had 53 weeks. All 
references herein for the years 2006, 2005 and 2004 represent the fiscal years 
ended February 2, 2007, February 3, 2006 and January 28, 2005, respectively. 
 Stock Split – The Company’s Board of Directors approved a 2-for-1 
stock split of its common shares on May 25, 2006. On June 30, 2006, share-
holders received one additional common share for each common share 
held as of the record date of June 16, 2006. The par value of the Company’s 
common stock remained at $0.50 per share. The par value of the additional 
shares issued to effect the stock split totaling $384 million was reclassified 
from Capital in Excess of Par Value to Common Stock on the Company’s 
consolidated balance sheet. All prior period common share and per 
common share amounts presented herein have been adjusted to reflect 
the 2-for-1 stock split.
 Principles of Consolidation – The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned or controlled 
operating subsidiaries. All material intercompany accounts and transac-
tions have been eliminated.
 use of Estimates – The preparation of the Company’s financial state-
ments in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates that 
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, sales and expenses and 
related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company bases 
these estimates on historical results and various other assumptions believed 
to be reasonable, all of which form the basis for making estimates concern-
ing the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily available 
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
 Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents include 
cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with origi-
nal maturities of three months or less when purchased. The majority of 
payments due from financial institutions for the settlement of credit card 
and debit card transactions process within two business days, and are 
therefore classified as cash and cash equivalents. 
 Investments – The Company has a cash management program which 
provides for the investment of cash balances not expected to be used in 
current operations in financial instruments that have maturities of up to 
10 years. Variable rate demand notes and auction rate securities, which 
have stated maturity dates of up to 30 years, meet this maturity requirement 
of the cash management program because the maturity date of these 
investments is determined based on the interest rate reset date for the 
purpose of applying this criteria. 
 Investments, exclusive of cash equivalents, with a stated maturity date 
of one year or less from the balance sheet date or that are expected to be 
used in current operations, are classified as short-term investments. All 
other investments are classified as long-term. Investments consist primarily 
of certificates of deposit, time deposits, U.S. dollar foreign government 
securities, money market preferred stocks, municipal obligations, agency 
bonds, corporate notes and bonds, auction rate securities and money market 
mutual funds. Restricted balances pledged as collateral for letters of credit 
for the Company’s extended warranty program and for a portion of the 
Company’s casualty insurance and installed sales program liabilities are 
also classified as investments. 

 The Company has classified all investment securities as available-
for-sale, and they are carried at fair market value. Unrealized gains and 
losses on such securities are included in accumulated other comprehen-
sive income in shareholders’ equity.
 Merchandise Inventory – Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or 
market using the first-in, first-out method of inventory accounting. The 
cost of inventory also includes certain costs associated with the preparation 
of inventory for resale and distribution center costs, net of vendor funds. 
 The Company records an inventory reserve for the loss associated with 
selling inventories below cost. This reserve is based on management’s current 
knowledge with respect to inventory levels, sales trends and historical 
experience. Management does not believe the Company’s merchandise 
inventories are subject to significant risk of obsolescence in the near term, 
and management has the ability to adjust purchasing practices based on 
anticipated sales trends and general economic conditions. However, 
changes in consumer purchasing patterns could result in the need for 
additional reserves. The Company also records an inventory reserve for 
the estimated shrinkage between physical inventories. This reserve is based 
primarily on actual shrink results from previous physical inventories. 
Changes in the estimated shrink reserve may be necessary based on the 
results of physical inventories. Management believes it has sufficient 
current and historical knowledge to record reasonable estimates for 
both of these inventory reserves. 
 Derivative Financial Instruments – The Company occasionally 
utilizes derivative financial instruments to manage certain business risks. 
However, the amounts were not material to the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements in any of the years presented. The Company does 
not use derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
 accounts Receivable – The majority of the Company’s accounts 
receivable arises from sales of goods and services to Commercial Business 
Customers. In May 2004, the Company entered into an agreement with 
General Electric Company and its subsidiaries (GE) to sell its then-exist-
ing portfolio of commercial business accounts receivable to GE. During 
the term of the agreement, which ends on December 31, 2009, unless 
terminated sooner by the parties, GE also purchases at face value new 
commercial business accounts receivable originated by the Company 
and services these accounts. The Company accounts for these transfers 
as sales of accounts receivable. When the Company sells its commercial 
business accounts receivable, it retains certain interests in those receiv-
ables, including the funding of a loss reserve and its obligation related to 
GE’s ongoing servicing of the receivables sold. Any gain or loss on the 
sale is determined based on the previous carrying amounts of the trans-
ferred assets allocated at fair value between the receivables sold and the 
interests retained. Fair value is based on the present value of expected 
future cash flows taking into account the key assumptions of anticipated 
credit losses, payment rates, late fee rates, GE’s servicing costs and the 
discount rate commensurate with the uncertainty involved. Due to the 
short-term nature of the receivables sold, changes to the key assumptions 
would not materially impact the recorded gain or loss on the sales of 
receivables or the fair value of the retained interests in the receivables.
 Total commercial business accounts receivable sold to GE were 
$1.8 billion in 2006, $1.7 billion in 2005 and $1.2 billion in 2004. During 
2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company recognized losses of $35 million, 
$41 million and $34 million, respectively, on these sales as selling, general 
and administrative (SG&A) expense, which primarily relates to the fair value 
of the obligations incurred related to servicing costs that are remitted to 
GE monthly. At February 2, 2007 and February 3, 2006, the fair value of 
the retained interests was insignificant and was determined based on the 
present value of expected future cash flows.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 2, 2007, FEBRUARY 3, 2006 AND JANUARY 28, 2005
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 Sales generated through the Company’s proprietary credit cards are 
not reflected in receivables. Under an agreement with GE, credit is extended 
directly to customers by GE. All credit program-related services are per-
formed and controlled directly by GE. The Company has the option, but 
no obligation, to purchase the receivables at the end of the agreement in 
December 2016. Tender costs, including amounts associated with accept-
ing the Company’s proprietary credit cards, are recorded in SG&A in the 
consolidated financial statements.
 The total portfolio of receivables held by GE, including both receivables 
originated by GE from the Company’s private label credit cards and 
commercial business accounts receivable originated by the Company and 
sold to GE, approximated $6.0 billion at February 2, 2007, and $5.0 billion 
at February 3, 2006. 
  Property and Depreciation – Property is recorded at cost. Costs 
associated with major additions are capitalized and depreciated. Capital 
assets are expected to yield future benefits and have useful lives which 
exceed one year. The total cost of a capital asset generally includes all 
applicable sales taxes, delivery costs, installation costs and other appro-
priate costs incurred by the Company in the case of self-constructed 
assets. Upon disposal, the cost of properties and related accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the accounts, with gains and losses 
reflected in SG&A expense in the consolidated statements of earnings.
 Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the 
depreciable assets. Assets are depreciated using the straight-line method. 
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated 
useful lives or the term of the related lease, which may include one or more 
option renewal periods where failure to exercise such options would result 
in an economic penalty in such amount that renewal appears, at the 
inception of the lease, to be reasonably assured. During the term of a lease, 
if a substantial additional investment is made in a leased location, the 
Company reevaluates its definition of lease term to determine whether the 
investment, together with any penalties related to non-renewal, would 
constitute an economic penalty in such amount that renewal appears, at 
the time of the reevaluation, to be reasonably assured.
 Long-Lived assets/Store Closing – Losses related to impairment of 
long-lived assets are recognized when circumstances indicate the carrying 
values of the assets may not be recoverable. When management commits 
to close or relocate a store location, or when there are indicators that the 
carrying value of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the Company 
evaluates the carrying value of the asset in relation to its expected undis-
counted future cash flows. If the carrying value of the assets is greater than 
the expected undiscounted future cash flows, and the fair value of the assets 
is less than the carrying value, a provision is made for the impairment of 
the assets based on the excess of carrying value over fair value. The fair 
value of the assets is generally based on appraisals and the Company’s 
historical experience.
 When a leased location is closed, a provision is made for the present 
value of future lease obligations, including property taxes, utilities, and 
common area maintenance, net of anticipated sublease income. Provisions 
for impairment and store closing costs are included in SG&A expense. 
The store closing liability is included in other current liabilities in the 
consolidated balance sheets.
 Leases – For lease agreements that provide for escalating rent payments 
or free-rent occupancy periods, the Company recognizes rent expense 
on a straight-line basis over the non-cancelable lease term and option 
renewal periods where failure to exercise such options would result in an 
economic penalty in such amount that renewal appears, at the inception 
of the lease, to be reasonably assured. The lease term commences on the 
date that the Company takes possession of or controls the physical use of 
the property. Deferred rent is included in other long-term liabilities in 
the consolidated balance sheets.

 Assets under capital leases are amortized in accordance with the 
Company’s normal depreciation policy for owned assets or, if shorter, 
over the non-cancelable lease term and any option renewal period where 
failure to exercise such option would result in an economic penalty in 
such amount that renewal appears, at the inception of the lease, to be 
reasonably assured. The amortization of the assets is included in depre-
ciation expense in the consolidated financial statements. During the 
term of a lease, if a substantial additional investment is made in a leased 
location, the Company reevaluates its definition of lease term. 
 Self-Insurance – The Company is self-insured for certain losses relating 
to workers’ compensation, automobile, property, and general and product 
liability claims. The Company has stop-loss coverage to limit the exposure 
arising from these claims. The Company is also self-insured for certain 
losses relating to medical and dental claims. Self-insurance claims filed and 
claims incurred but not reported are accrued based upon management’s 
estimates of the discounted ultimate cost for uninsured claims incurred 
using actuarial assumptions followed in the insurance industry and historical 
experience. Although management believes it has the ability to adequately 
record estimated losses related to claims, it is possible that actual results 
could differ from recorded self-insurance liabilities. 
 Income Taxes – The Company establishes deferred income tax assets 
and liabilities for temporary differences between the tax and financial 
accounting bases of assets and liabilities. The tax effects of such differences 
are reflected in the balance sheet at the enacted tax rates expected to be 
in effect when the differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded 
to reduce the carrying amount of deferred tax assets if it is more likely 
than not that all or a portion of the asset will not be realized. The tax bal-
ances and income tax expense recognized by the Company are based on 
management’s interpretation of the tax statutes of multiple jurisdictions. 
 The Company includes interest related to tax issues as part of net interest 
in the consolidated financial statements. The Company records any appli-
cable penalties related to tax issues within the income tax provision.
 Revenue Recognition – The Company recognizes revenues, net of 
sales tax, when sales transactions occur and customers take possession 
of the merchandise. A provision for anticipated merchandise returns is 
provided through a reduction of sales and cost of sales in the period that 
the related sales are recorded. Revenues from product installation services 
are recognized when the installation is completed. Deferred revenues 
associated with amounts received for which customers have not yet taken 
possession of merchandise or for which installation has not yet been 
completed were $364 million and $377 million at February 2, 2007, and 
February 3, 2006, respectively. 
 Revenues from stored value cards, which include gift cards and returned 
merchandise credits, are deferred and recognized when the cards are 
redeemed. The liability associated with outstanding stored value cards 
was $367 million and $293 million at February 2, 2007, and February 3, 
2006, respectively, and these amounts are included in deferred revenue 
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The Company recog-
nizes income from unredeemed stored value cards at the point at which 
redemption becomes remote. The Company’s stored value cards have no 
expiration. Therefore, to determine when redemption is remote, the 
Company analyzes an aging of the unredeemed cards, based on the date 
of last stored value card use. 
 Extended Warranties – Lowe’s sells separately-priced extended 
warranty contracts under a Lowe’s-branded program for which the 
Company is ultimately self-insured. The Company recognizes revenue 
from extended warranty sales on a straight-line basis over the respective 
contract term. Extended warranty contract terms primarily range from 
one to four years from the date of purchase or the end of the manufacturer’s 
warranty, as applicable. Deferred revenues related to the Company’s extended 
warranty sales were $315 million and $206 million at February 2, 2007 and 
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February 3, 2006, respectively. The Company’s extended warranty deferred 
revenue is included in other long-term liabilities in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. Changes in deferred revenue for extended 
warranty contracts are summarized as follows:

(In millions)   2006 2005
Extended warranty deferred revenue, beginning of period $206 $ 86
Additions to deferred revenue  148 130
Deferred revenue recognized  (39) (10)
Extended warranty deferred revenue, end of period $315 $206

 Incremental direct acquisition costs associated with the sale of extended 
warranties are also deferred and recognized as expense on a straight-line basis 
over the respective contract term. Deferred costs associated with extended 
warranty contracts were $81 million and $54 million at February 2, 2007 and 
February 3, 2006, respectively. The Company’s extended warranty deferred 
costs are included in other assets (non-current) in the accompanying con-
solidated balance sheets. All other costs, such as costs of services performed 
under the contract, general and administrative expenses and advertising 
expenses are expensed as incurred.
 The Company’s liability for extended warranty claims incurred is 
included in self-insurance liabilities in the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets. Reductions in the extended warranty liability for payments 
made under the extended warranties were $16 million, and increases in 
the liability for accruals related to preexisting warranties were $17 million 
in 2006. Reductions in the extended warranty liability for payments made 
under the extended warranties and aggregate changes in the liability for 
accruals related to preexisting warranties were not significant in 2005, as 
the program was still in its beginning stages. 
 Cost of Sales and Selling, general and administrative Expenses – 
The following lists the primary costs classified in each major  
expense category:

Cost of Sales
 •  Total cost of products sold, including:
 -  Purchase costs, net of vendor funds;
 -   Freight expenses associated with moving merchandise inventories 

from vendors to retail stores;
 -   Costs associated with operating the Company’s distribution network, 

including payroll and benefit costs and occupancy costs;
 •  Costs of services provided;
 •   Costs associated with delivery of products directly from vendors to 

customers by third parties;
 •  Costs associated with inventory shrinkage and obsolescence.

Selling, general and administrative 
 •   Payroll and benefit costs for retail and corporate employees;
 •   Occupancy costs of retail and corporate facilities;
 •   Advertising;
 •   Costs associated with delivery of products from stores to customers;
 •   Third-party in-store service costs;
 •   Tender costs, including bank charges, costs associated with credit 

card interchange fees, and amounts associated with accepting the 
Company’s proprietary credit cards;

 •   Costs associated with self-insured plans, and premium costs for 
stop-loss coverage and fully insured plans;

 •   Long-lived asset impairment charges and gains/losses on disposal 
of assets;

 •   Other administrative costs, such as supplies, and travel and  
entertainment.

 Vendor Funds – The Company receives funds from vendors in the 
normal course of business principally as a result of purchase volumes, 
sales, early payments, or promotions of vendors’ products. Based on the 
provisions of the vendor agreements in place, management develops 

accrual rates by estimating the point at which the Company will have 
completed its performance under the agreement and the amount will be 
earned. During the year, due to the complexity and diversity of the individual 
vendor agreements, the Company performs analyses and reviews historical 
trends to ensure the amounts earned are appropriately recorded. As a part 
of these analyses, the Company validates its accrual rates based on actual 
purchase trends and applies those rates to actual purchase volumes to 
determine the amount of funds accrued by the Company and receivable 
from the vendor. Amounts accrued throughout the year could be impacted 
if actual purchase volumes differ from projected annual purchase volumes, 
especially in the case of programs that provide for increased funding when 
graduated purchase volumes are met. 
 Under Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-16 (EITF 02-16), 
“Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller) for Certain Consideration 
Received from a Vendor,” vendor funds are treated as a reduction of 
inventory cost, unless they represent a reimbursement of specific, incre-
mental and identifiable costs incurred by the customer to sell the vendor’s 
product. Substantially all of the vendor funds that the Company receives 
do not meet the specific, incremental and identifiable criteria in EITF 
02-16. Therefore, the Company treats the majority of these funds as a 
reduction in the cost of inventory as the amounts are earned and recog-
nizes these funds as a reduction of cost of sales when the inventory is 
sold. There is no impact to the timing of when the funds are received 
from vendors or the associated cash flows. 
 advertising – Costs associated with advertising are charged to oper-
ations as incurred. Advertising expenses were $873 million, $812 million 
and $740 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 Shipping and Handling Costs – The Company includes shipping 
and handling costs relating to the delivery of products directly from 
vendors to customers by third parties in cost of sales. Shipping and han-
dling costs, which include salaries and vehicle operations expenses relating 
to the delivery of products from stores to customers, are classified as 
SG&A expenses. Shipping and handling costs included in SG&A expenses 
were $310 million, $312 million and $255 million during 2006, 2005 and 
2004, respectively.
 Store Opening Costs – Costs of opening new or relocated retail 
stores, which include payroll and supply costs incurred prior to store 
opening and grand opening advertising costs, are charged to operations 
as incurred. 
 Comprehensive Income – The Company reports comprehen-
sive income in its consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity. 
Comprehensive income represents changes in shareholders’ equity from 
non-owner sources and is comprised primarily of net earnings plus or 
minus unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities, as 
well as foreign currency translation adjustments. For the year ended 
February 2, 2007, foreign currency translation losses were approximately 
$2 million, and net unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securi-
ties were approximately $2 million. For the year ended February 3, 2006, 
foreign currency translation gains were approximately $1 million and 
unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale securities were insignifi-
cant. For the year ended January 28, 2005, unrealized holding losses on 
available-for-sale securities were approximately $1 million, and there 
were no foreign currency translation adjustments. The reclassification 
adjustments for gains/losses included in net earnings for 2006, 2005 and 
2004 were insignificant.
 Recent accounting Pronouncements – In July 2006, the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), 
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB 
Statement No. 109.” This Interpretation clarifies the accounting for 
uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition threshold and 
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measure-
ment of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. This 
Interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, 
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interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and 
transition. The Interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2006. Management is continuing to evaluate the effect 
that the adoption of FIN 48 will have on the Company’s consolidated 
financial statements. 
 In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards (SFAS) No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” The Statement 
provides a single definition of fair value, together with a framework for 
measuring it, and requires additional disclosure about the use of fair 
value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 also emphasizes that 
fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measure-
ment, and sets out a fair value hierarchy with the highest priority being 
quoted prices in active markets. Under the Statement, fair value measure-
ments are required to be disclosed by level within that hierarchy. The 
Statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years begin-
ning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal 
years. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption of 
SFAS No. 157 will have on its consolidated financial statements.
 In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value 
Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities.” The Statement provides enti-
ties an option to measure many financial instruments and certain other 
items at fair value, including available-for-sale and held-to-maturity 
securities previously accounted for under SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for 
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” Under this Statement, 
unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been 
elected will be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting period. 
The Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 
2007. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that the adoption 
of SFAS No. 159 will have on its consolidated financial statements.
  Segment Information – The Company’s operating segments, repre-
senting the Company’s home improvement retail stores, are aggregated 
within one reportable segment, based on the way the Company manages 
its business. The Company’s home improvement retail stores exhibit 
similar long-term economic characteristics, sell similar products and 
services, use similar processes to sell those products and services, and 
sell their products and services to similar classes of customers. 
 Reclassifications – Certain prior period amounts have been reclassi-
fied to conform to current classifications.

Note 2  InVESTMEnTS
The Company’s investment securities are classified as available-for-sale. 
The amortized costs, gross unrealized holding gains and losses and fair 
values of the investments at February 2, 2007, and February 3, 2006, were 
as follows:

     February 2, 2007
      Gross Gross 
Type    Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
(In millions)  Cost Gains Losses Value
Municipal obligations $ 258 $ – $ (1) $ 257
Money market preferred stock  148  –  –  148
Corporate notes  26  –  –  26
Certificates of deposit  1  –  –  1
Classified as short-term  433  –  (1)  432
Municipal obligations  127  –  –  127
Mutual funds  35  3  –  38
Classified as long-term  162  3  –  165
Total   $ 595 $ 3 $ (1) $ 597

     February 3, 2006
      Gross Gross 
Type    Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
(In millions)  Cost Gains Losses Value
Municipal obligations $ 295 $ – $ (1) $ 294
Money market preferred stock  157  –  –  157
Corporate notes  2  –  –  2
Classified as short-term  454  –  (1)  453
Municipal obligations  223  –  (1)  222
Corporate notes  32  –  –  32
Mutual funds  23  2  –  25
Asset-backed obligations  14  –  –  14
Certificates of deposit  1  –  –  1
Classified as long-term  293  2  (1)  294
Total   $ 747 $ 2 $ (2) $ 747

 The proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities were $412 million, 
$192 million and $165 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Gross 
realized gains and losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities were 
not significant for any of the periods presented. The municipal obligations 
classified as long-term at February 2, 2007, will mature in one to 30 years, 
based on stated maturity dates. 
 Short-term and long-term investments include restricted balances 
pledged as collateral for letters of credit for the Company’s extended warranty 
program and for a portion of the Company’s casualty insurance and installed 
sales program liabilities. Restricted balances included in short-term investments 
were $248 million at February 2, 2007 and $152 million at February 3, 2006. 
Restricted balances included in long-term investments were $32 million at 
February 2, 2007 and $74 million at February 3, 2006.

 Note 3   PROPERTY anD aCCuMuLaTED 
DEPRECIaTIOn

Property is summarized by major class in the following table:

     Estimated 
     Depreciable February 2, February 3, 
(In millions)  Lives, In Years 2007 2006
Cost:
Land   N/A $ 5,496 $ 4,894
Buildings 10–40  9,655  8,204
Equipment 3–15  7,477  6,468
Leasehold improvements 3–40  2,476  1,853
Total cost   25,104  21,419
Accumulated depreciation    (6,133)  (5,065)
Property, less accumulated depreciation  $ 18,971 $ 16,354

 Included in net property are assets under capital lease of $533 million, 
less accumulated depreciation of $274 million, at February 2, 2007, 
and $534 million, less accumulated depreciation of $248 million, at 
February 3, 2006.

Note 4   IMPaIRMEnT anD STORE CLOSIng COSTS
The Company periodically reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets 
for potential impairment. The charge for impairment is included in SG&A 
expense. Impairment charges were $5 million, $16 million and $31 million 
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
 The net carrying value for relocated stores, closed stores and other 
excess property are included in other assets (non-current) and totaled 
$113 million and $63 million at February 2, 2007, and February 3, 2006, 
respectively.
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 When leased locations are closed, a liability is recognized for the fair 
value of future contractual obligations, including property taxes, utilities, 
and common area maintenance, net of anticipated sublease income. The 
charge for store closing costs is included in SG&A expense. The store closing 
liability, which is included in other current liabilities in the consolidated 
balance sheets, was $19 million and $23 million at February 2, 2007, and 
February 3, 2006, respectively.

Note 5   SHORT-TERM BORROWIngS anD  
LInES OF CREDIT

The Company has a $1 billion senior credit facility which became effective 
in July 2004 and expires in July 2009. This facility is available to support 
the Company’s commercial paper program and for direct borrowings. 
Borrowings are priced based upon market conditions at the time of funding 
in accordance with the terms of the senior credit facility. The senior credit 
facility contains certain restrictive covenants, which include maintenance 
of a debt leverage ratio as defined by the facility. The Company was in com-
pliance with these covenants at February 2, 2007 and February 3, 2006. 
Fifteen banking institutions are participating in the $1 billion senior credit 
facility. As of February 2, 2007, the Company had $23 million of short-term 
borrowings outstanding under the senior credit facility but no outstand-
ing borrowings under the commercial paper program. The interest rate 
on short-term borrowings was 5.4%. As of February 3, 2006, there were 
no outstanding borrowings under the senior credit facility or under the 
commercial paper program. 
 Five banks have extended lines of credit aggregating $486 million for 
the purpose of issuing documentary letters of credit and standby letters 
of credit. These lines do not have termination dates and are reviewed 
periodically. Commitment fees ranging from .225% to .50% per annum 
are paid on the letters of credit amounts outstanding. Outstanding letters 
of credit totaled $346 million as of February 2, 2007, and $316 million as 
of February 3, 2006. 

Note 6  LOng-TERM DEBT
      Fiscal Year 
(In millions)   of Final February 2, February 3, 
Debt Category Interest Rates Maturity 2007 2006
Secured debt:1

Mortgage notes 6.57 to 8.25% 2028 $ 30 $ 38
Unsecured debt:
Debentures  6.50 to 6.88% 2029  693  693
Notes  8.25% 2010  498  498
Medium-term notes –  
 series A 7.35 to 8.20% 2023  27  27
Medium-term notes –  
 series B2 6.70 to 7.61% 2037  267  267
Senior notes 5.00 to 5.80% 2036  1,980  988
Convertible notes 0.86 to 2.50% 2021  518  596
Capital leases  
 and other  2030  400  424
Total long-term debt    4,413  3,531
Less current maturities    88  32
Long-term debt, excluding  
 current maturities   $ 4,325 $ 3,499
1   Real properties with an aggregate book value of $122 million were pledged as collateral at 

February 2, 2007, for secured debt.
2   Approximately 37% of these medium-term notes may be put at the option of the holder on  

either the tenth or twentieth anniversary of the issue at par value. The medium-term notes  
were issued in 1997. None of these notes are currently putable.

 Debt maturities, exclusive of unamortized original issue discounts, 
capital leases and other, for the next five years and thereafter are as follows: 
2007, $61 million; 2008, $7 million; 2009, $1 million; 2010, $501 million; 
2011, $1 million; thereafter, $3.6 billion. 

 The Company’s debentures, notes, medium-term notes, senior notes, 
and convertible notes contain certain restrictive covenants. The Company 
was in compliance with all covenants in these agreements at February 2, 
2007 and February 3, 2006.

Senior notes
In October 2005, the Company issued $1 billion of unsecured senior notes, 
comprised of two $500 million tranches maturing in October 2015 and 
October 2035, respectively. The first $500 million tranche of 5.0% Senior 
Notes was sold at a discount of $4 million. The second $500 million tranche 
of 5.5% Senior Notes was sold at a discount of $8 million. Interest on the 
Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears in April and October of 
each year until maturity. The discount associated with the issuance is 
included in long-term debt and is being amortized over the respective 
terms of the Senior Notes. Issuance costs were approximately $1 million 
and are being amortized over the respective terms of the Senior Notes. 
The net proceeds of approximately $988 million were used for the repay-
ment of $600 million in outstanding notes due December 2005, for general 
corporate purposes, including capital expenditures and working capital 
needs, and to finance repurchases of common stock.
 In October 2006, the Company issued $1 billion of unsecured 
senior notes, comprised of two tranches: $550 million of 5.4% Senior 
Notes maturing in October 2016 and $450 million of 5.8% Senior Notes 
maturing in October 2036. The 5.4% Senior Notes and the 5.8% Senior 
Notes were each issued at a discount of approximately $4.4 million. 
Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears in April 
and October of each year until maturity, beginning in April 2007. The 
discount associated with the issuance is included in long-term debt 
and is being amortized over the respective terms of the Senior Notes. 
Issuance costs were approximately $1.6 million and are being amortized 
over the respective terms of the Senior Notes. The net proceeds of approxi-
mately $991 million were used for general corporate purposes, including 
capital expenditures and working capital needs, and to finance repur-
chases of common stock.
 The Senior Notes issued in 2005 and 2006 may be redeemed by the 
Company at any time, in whole or in part, at a redemption price plus 
accrued interest to the date of redemption. The redemption price is equal 
to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the Senior Notes 
to be redeemed, or (2) the sum of the present values of the remaining 
scheduled payments of principal and interest thereon, discounted to 
the date of redemption on a semi-annual basis at a specified rate. The 
indenture governing the Senior Notes does not limit the aggregate prin-
cipal amount of debt securities that the Company may issue, nor is the 
Company required to maintain financial ratios or specified levels of net 
worth or liquidity. However, the indenture contains various restrictive 
covenants, none of which is expected to impact the Company’s liquidity 
or capital resources. 

Convertible notes
The Company has $578.8 million aggregate principal of senior convert-
ible notes issued in October 2001 at an issue price of $861.03 per note. 
Cash interest payments on the notes ceased in October 2006. In October 
2021 when the notes mature, a holder will receive $1,000 per note, repre-
senting a yield to maturity of approximately 1%. Holders of the notes had 
the right to require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their 
notes in October 2003 and October 2006, at a price of $861.03 per note 
plus accrued cash interest, if any, and will have the right in October 2011 
to require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their notes at a 
price of $905.06 per note. The Company may choose to pay the purchase 
price of the notes in cash or common stock or a combination of cash and 
common stock. Holders of an insignificant number of notes exercised 
their right to require the Company to repurchase their notes during 
2003 and 2006, all of which were purchased in cash. The Company may 
redeem for cash all or a portion of the notes at any time, at a price equal 
to the sum of the issue price plus accrued original issue discount on the 
redemption date. 
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 Holders of the senior convertible notes may convert their notes into 
34.424 shares of the Company’s common stock only if: the sale price of 
the Company’s common stock reaches specified thresholds, or the credit 
rating of the notes is below a specified level, or the notes are called for 
redemption, or specified corporate transactions representing a change in 
control have occurred. The conversion ratio of 34.424 shares per note is 
only adjusted based on normal antidilution provisions designed to protect 
the value of the conversion option. 
 The Company’s closing share prices reached the specified threshold 
such that the senior convertible notes became convertible at the option 
of each holder into shares of common stock during specified quarters of 
2006. Holders of an insignificant number of senior convertible notes 
exercised their right to convert their notes into shares of the Company’s 
common stock during 2006 and 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2006, 
the Company’s closing share prices again reached the specified threshold 
such that the senior convertible notes are convertible at the option of each 
holder into shares of common stock in the first quarter of 2007. 
 The Company has $37.7 million aggregate principal of convertible 
notes issued in February 2001 at an issue price of $608.41 per note. Interest 
will not be paid on the notes prior to maturity in February 2021, at which 
time the holders will receive $1,000 per note, representing a yield to maturity 
of 2.5%. Holders of the notes had the right to require the Company to 
purchase all or a portion of their notes in February 2004, at a price of 
$655.49 per note and will have the right in February 2011 to require the 
Company to purchase all or a portion of their notes at a price of $780.01 
per note. The Company may choose to pay the purchase price of the notes 
in cash or common stock, or a combination of cash and common stock. 
Holders of an insignificant number of notes exercised their right to 
require the Company to purchase their notes during 2004, all of which 
were purchased in cash. 
 Holders of the convertible notes issued in February 2001 may convert 
their notes at any time on or before the maturity date, unless the notes 
have been previously purchased or redeemed, into 32.896 shares of the 
Company’s common stock per note. The conversion ratio of 32.896 shares 
per note is only adjusted based on normal antidilution provisions designed 
to protect the value of the conversion option. During 2006, holders of 
$118 million principal amount, $80 million carrying amount, of the 
Company’s convertible notes issued in February 2001 exercised their 
right to convert their notes into 3.9 million shares of the Company’s 
common stock at the rate of 32.896 shares per note. During 2005, holders 
of $839 million principal amount, $565 million carrying amount of the 
Company’s convertible notes issued in February 2001 exercised their 
right to convert their notes into 27.6 million shares of the Company’s 
common stock.
 Upon the issuance of each of the series of convertible notes previously 
described, the Company evaluated the optionality features embedded in 
the notes and concluded that these features do not require bifurcation 
from the host contracts and separate accounting as derivative instruments.

Note 7  FInanCIaL InSTRuMEnTS
Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term borrowings, 
trade accounts payable and accrued liabilities are reflected in the financial 
statements at cost, which approximates fair value due to their short-term 
nature. Short- and long-term investments classified as available-for-sale 
securities, which include restricted balances, are reflected in the financial 
statements at fair value.  Estimated fair values for long-term debt have been 
determined using available market information and appropriate valuation 
methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting 
market data to develop the estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates 
presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the 
Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different 

market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material 
effect on the estimated fair value amounts. The fair value of the Company’s 
long-term debt excluding capital leases and other is as follows:

     February 2, 2007 February 3, 2006
     Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
(In millions)  Amount Value Amount Value
Liabilities:
Long-term debt
  (excluding capital  

leases and other) $4,013 $4,301 $ 3,107 $ 3,578

 Interest rates that are currently available to the Company for issuance 
of debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used to estimate 
fair value for debt issues that are not quoted on an exchange.

Note 8  SHaREHOLDERS’ EquITY
Authorized shares of common stock were 5.6 billion ($.50 par) at 
February 2, 2007 and February 3, 2006.
 The Company has five million ($5 par) authorized shares of preferred 
stock, none of which have been issued. The Board of Directors may issue 
the preferred stock (without action by shareholders) in one or more series, 
having such voting rights, dividend and liquidation preferences and such 
conversion and other rights as may be designated by the Board of Directors 
at the time of issuance.
 In January 2005, the Board of Directors authorized up to $1 billion in 
share repurchases through 2006. In January and August 2006, the Board 
of Directors authorized up to an additional $1 billion and $2 billion in 
share repurchases through 2007 and 2008, respectively. This program is 
implemented through purchases made from time to time either in the 
open market or through private transactions. Shares purchased under 
the share repurchase program are retired and returned to authorized and 
unissued status. During 2005, the Company repurchased 25.0 million shares 
at a total cost of $774 million. During 2006, the Company repurchased 
56.8 million shares at a total cost of $1.7 billion (of which $160 million 
was recorded as a reduction in retained earnings in the third quarter 
after capital in excess of par value was depleted). As of February 2, 2007, 
the total remaining authorization under the share repurchase program 
was $1.5 billion.

Note 9   aCCOunTIng FOR SHaRE-BaSED 
PaYMEnT

Effective February 4, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition 
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” using the modified-
prospective-transition method. Prior to this, the Company was applying 
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for 
Stock Based Compensation.” Under the SFAS No. 123(R) transition 
method, compensation cost recognized in the year ended February 2, 2007 
included: (a) the pro rata compensation cost for all share-based payments 
granted prior to, but not yet vested as of February 4, 2006, based on the 
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions 
of SFAS No. 123, and (b) the pro rata compensation cost for all share-based 
payments granted on or subsequent to February 4, 2006, based on the 
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of 
SFAS No. 123(R). In accordance with the modified-prospective-transition 
method of SFAS No. 123(R), results for prior periods have not been restated. 
For all grants, the amount of share-based payment expense recognized has 
been adjusted for estimated forfeitures of awards for which the requisite 
service is not expected to be provided. Estimated forfeiture rates are 
developed based on the Company’s analysis of historical forfeiture data 
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for homogeneous employee groups. Prior to the adoption of the fair 
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), share-based payment 
expense was adjusted for actual forfeitures as they occurred. This transition 
resulted in a pre-tax cumulative effect adjustment of $10 million as of 
February 4, 2006. The cumulative effect adjustment was presented as a 
reduction of share-based payment expense in the first quarter of 2006.
 The Company recognized share-based payment expense in SG&A 
expense on the consolidated statements of earnings totaling $62 million, 
$76 million and $70 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The 
total income tax benefit recognized was $18 million, $19 million and 
$16 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
 Total unrecognized share-based payment expense for all share-based 
payment plans was $103 million at February 2, 2007, of which $51 million 
will be recognized in 2007, $34 million in 2008 and $18 million thereafter. 
This results in these amounts being recognized over a weighted-average 
period of 1.2 years.
 Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company presented all 
tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of stock options as 
operating cash flows in the consolidated statements of cash flows. SFAS 
No. 123(R) requires the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits of 
deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options 
(excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. In accordance 
with the modified-prospective-transition method of SFAS No. 123(R), 
the prior period consolidated statements of cash flows have not been 
restated to reflect this change.
 As the Company adopted the fair-value recognition provisions of 
SFAS No. 123 prospectively for all employee awards granted or modified 
after January 31, 2003, share-based payment expense included in the 
determination of net earnings for years ended February 3, 2006 and 
January 28, 2005 is less than that which would have been recognized if 
the fair-value-based method had been applied to all awards since the 
original effective date of SFAS No. 123. The following table illustrates 
the effect on net earnings and earnings per share in the period if the 
fair-value-based method had been applied to all outstanding and 
unvested awards.

(In millions, except per share data)  2005 2004
Net earnings as reported  $2,765    $2,167
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included  
 in net earnings, net of related tax effects  57 53
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense 
 determined under the fair-value-based method  
 for all awards, net of related tax effects  (59) (95)
Pro forma net earnings   $2,763      $2,125
Earnings per share:
 Basic – as reported  $  1.78      $  1.39
 Basic – pro forma  $  1.78          $  1.37

 Diluted – as reported  $  1.73         $  1.35
 Diluted – pro forma  $  1.73      $  1.32

Overview of Share-Based Payment Plans
The Company has (a) four equity incentive plans, referred to as the “2006,” 
“2001,” “1997,” and “1994” Incentive Plans, (b) one share-based plan for 
awards to non-employee directors and (c) an employee stock purchase 
plan (ESPP) that allows employees to purchase Company shares through 
payroll deductions. These plans contain a nondiscretionary antidilution 
provision that is designed to equalize the value of an award as a result of an 
equity restructuring. Share-based awards in the form of incentive and 
non-qualified stock options, performance accelerated restricted stock 
(PARS), restricted stock and deferred stock units may be granted to key 
employees from the 2006 plan. No new awards may be granted from the 
2001, 1997 and 1994 plans. 

 The share-based plan for non-employee directors is referred to as the 
Amended and Restated Directors’ Stock Option and Deferred Stock Unit 
Plan (Directors’ Plan). Prior to the amendment to the Directors’ Plan in 
2005, each non-employee Director was awarded 8,000 options on the date 
of the first Board meeting after each annual meeting of the Company’s 
shareholders, which occurs in the second quarter of each fiscal year. 
Since the amendment to the Directors’ Plan in 2005, each non-employee 
Director is awarded a number of deferred stock units determined by 
dividing the annual award amount by the fair market value of a share of 
the Company’s common stock on the award date and rounding up to the 
next 100 units. The annual award amount used to determine the number 
of deferred stock units granted to each director was $115,000 and $85,000 
in 2006 and 2005, respectively. 
 Share-based awards were authorized for grant to key employees and 
non-employee directors for up to 169.0 million shares of common stock. 
Stock options were authorized for up to 129.2 million shares, while PARS, 
restricted stock and deferred stock units, which represent nonvested 
stock, were authorized for up to 39.8 million shares of common stock.  
 At February 2, 2007, there were 49.8 million shares available for grant 
under the 2006 and Directors’ Plans, and 1.3 million shares available 
under the ESPP. 
  General terms and methods of valuation for the Company’s share-based 
awards are as follows:

Stock Options
Stock options generally have terms of seven years, with normally one-
third of each grant vesting each year for three years, and are assigned 
an exercise price of not less than the fair market value of a share of the 
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. 
 The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant 
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. When determining 
expected volatility, the Company considers the historical performance 
of the Company’s stock, as well as implied volatility. The risk-free interest 
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant, 
based on the options’ expected term. The expected term of the options is 
based on the Company’s evaluation of option holders’ exercise patterns 
and represents the period of time that options are expected to remain 
unexercised. The Company uses historical data to estimate the timing 
and amount of forfeitures. These options are expensed on a straight-line 
basis over the vesting period, which is considered to be the requisite 
service period. The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option- 
pricing model for options granted in the three years ended February 2, 
2007, February 3, 2006 and January 28, 2005 were as follows:

     2006 2005 2004
Assumptions used:
 Expected volatility 22.3%–29.4% 25.8%–34.1% 31.6%–41.4%
 Weighted-average 
  expected volatility 26.8% 31.4% 38.3%
 Expected dividend yield 0.27%–0.31% 0.23%–0.28% 0.21%–0.23%
 Weighted-average 
  dividend yield 0.28% 0.24% 0.22%
 Risk-free interest rate 4.54%–4.97% 3.76%–4.44% 2.18%–3.46%
 Weighted-average risk-free  
  interest rate 4.69% 3.81% 2.39%
 Expected term, in years 3–4 3–4 3–4
 Weighted-average expected  
  term, in years 3.57 3.22 3.27

 The weighted-average grant-date fair value per share of options granted 
was $8.86, $7.81 and $8.28 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The total 
intrinsic value of options exercised, representing the difference between 
the exercise price and the market price on the date of exercise, was approxi-
mately $80 million, $175 million and $76 million in 2006, 2005 and 
2004, respectively. 
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 Transactions related to stock options issued under the 2006, 2001, 
1997, 1994 and Directors’ plans for the year ended February 2, 2007 are 
summarized as follows:

      Weighted- Weighted- Aggregate 
      Average Average Intrinsic 
     Shares Exercise Price Remaining  Value
     (In thousands) Per Share Term (In years) (In thousands)

Outstanding at 
 February 3, 2006 30,595 $22.48
Granted 6,691  33.65
Canceled,  
 forfeited or expired (1,140) 30.82
Exercised (5,758) 17.89
Outstanding at  
 February 2, 2007 30,388 25.51 3.72 $262,577
Vested and expected  
 to vest at  
 February 2, 2007 (1) 29,235 25.24 3.64 $260,641
Exercisable at  
 February 2, 2007 19,438 $22.06 2.70 $234,952
(1)  Includes outstanding vested options as well as outstanding, nonvested options after  

a forfeiture rate is applied.

Performance accelerated Restricted Stock awards
PARS are valued at the market price of a share of the Company’s common 
stock on the date of grant. In general, these awards vest at the end of a five-
year service period from the date of grant, unless performance acceleration 
goals are achieved, in which case, awards vest 50% at the end of three years 
or 100% at the end of four years. The performance acceleration goals are 
based on targeted Company return on beginning non-cash assets, as defined 
in the PARS agreement. PARS are expensed on a straight-line basis over 
the shorter of the explicit service period related to the service condition or 
the implicit service period related to the performance conditions, based 
on the probability of meeting the conditions. The Company uses historical 
data to estimate the timing and amount of forfeitures. The weighted-
average grant-date fair value per share of PARS granted was $34.10 and 
$29.24 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. No PARS were granted in 2004. The 
total fair value of PARS vested was approximately $1 million in 2005. No 
PARS vested in 2006 or 2004. 
 Transactions related to PARS issued under the 2006, 2001, 1997 and 
1994 plans for the year ended February 2, 2007 are summarized as follows:

         Weighted-Average 
        Grant-Date 
        Fair Value 
       Shares  Per Share
Nonvested at February 3, 2006  595,830 $29.25
Granted   893,160 34.10
Canceled or forfeited   (50,410) 32.05
Nonvested at February 2, 2007  1,438,580 $32.17

Restricted Stock awards
The restricted stock awards are valued at the market price of a share of the 
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. In general, these awards 
vest at the end of a three-year period from the date of grant and are expensed 
on a straight-line basis over that period, which is considered to be the 
requisite service period. The Company uses historical data to estimate the 
timing and amount of forfeitures. The weighted-average grant-date fair 
value per share of restricted stock awards granted was $27.34, $32.30 
and $28.38 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The total fair value of 
restricted stock awards vested was approximately $4 million in 2005. 
No restricted stock awards vested in 2006 or 2004. 

 Transactions related to restricted stock issued under the 2006, 2001, 
1997 and 1994 plans for the year ended February 2, 2007 are summarized 
as follows:

         Weighted-Average 
        Grant-Date 
        Fair Value 
       Shares  Per Share
Nonvested at February 3, 2006  1,765,312 $31.17
Granted   206,886 27.34
Canceled or forfeited   (84,616) 30.80
Nonvested at February 2, 2007  1,887,582 $30.77

Deferred Stock units
The deferred stock units are valued at the market price of a share of the 
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. For key employees, these 
awards generally vest over three to five years and are expensed on a straight-
line basis over that period, which is considered to be the requisite service 
period. The Company uses historical data to estimate the timing and amount 
of forfeitures. For non-employee directors, these awards vest immediately 
and are expensed on the grant date. The weighted-average grant-date fair 
value per share of deferred stock units granted was $31.02 and $28.58 in 
2006 and 2005, respectively. No deferred stock units were granted in 2004. 
The total fair value of deferred stock units vested was approximately 
$5 million and $17 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively. No deferred 
stock units vested in 2004. There were 568,000 deferred stock units outstand-
ing at February 2, 2007.
 Transactions related to deferred stock units issued under the 2006, 
2001, 1997, 1994 and Directors’ plans for the year ended February 2, 2007 
are summarized as follows:

         Weighted-Average 
        Grant-Date 
        Fair Value 
       Shares  Per Share
Nonvested at February 3, 2006  500,000 $19.65
Granted   38,000 31.02
Vested    (158,000) 22.38
Nonvested at February 2, 2007  380,000 $19.65

ESPP
The purchase price of the shares under the ESPP equals 85% of the closing 
price on the date of purchase. The Company’s share-based payment expense 
is equal to 15% of the closing price on the date of purchase. Prior to the 
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the ESPP was considered an equity award. 
In connection with the implementation of SFAS No. 123(R), the ESPP was 
reclassified as a liability award. This liability award is measured at fair value 
at each reporting date and the share-based payment expense is recognized 
over the six-month offering period. Twenty million shares were authorized 
for this plan with 1,268,979 remaining available at February 2, 2007. The 
Company issued 2,916,259 shares of common stock pursuant to this plan 
during the year ended February 2, 2007. 

Note 10  EMPLOYEE RETIREMEnT PLanS
The Company maintains a defined contribution retirement plan for its 
employees (the 401(k) Plan). Employees are eligible to participate in the 
401(k) Plan after completing 90 days of continuous service. Participants 
are allowed to choose from a group of mutual funds in order to designate 
how both employer and employee contributions are to be invested. The 
Company’s common stock is also one of the investment options for con-
tributions to the 401(k) Plan. Company shares held on the participants’ 
behalf by the 401(k) Plan are voted by the participants. The Company 
makes contributions to the 401(k) Plan each payroll period, based upon 
a matching formula applied to employee contributions (baseline match).
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In addition, the Company offers a performance match to eligible 401(k) 
Plan participants, based on growth of Company earnings before taxes for 
the fiscal year. 401(k) Plan participants must have three or more years of 
employment service and be actively employed on the last day of the fiscal 
year to be eligible for the performance match. The performance match is 
funded in participant accounts in April of the following year. The Company’s 
contributions to the 401(k) Plan vest immediately in the participant 
accounts. Once participants reach age 59 ½, they may elect to withdraw 
their entire 401(k) Plan balance. This is a one-time, in-service distribution 
option. Participants may also withdraw contributions and rollover con-
tributions for reasons of hardship while still actively employed. In addition, 
participants with 20 or more years of service, who have an Employee 
Stock Ownership Plan carryforward account balance within the 401(k) 
Plan, can elect to receive a one-time, in-service distribution of 50% of 
this account balance. 
 The Company also maintains a Benefit Restoration Plan (BRP) to 
supplement benefits provided under the 401(k) Plan to 401(k) Plan partici-
pants whose benefits are restricted as a result of certain provisions of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. This plan provides for employer contri-
butions in the form of a baseline match and a performance match.  
 The Company also maintains a non-qualified deferred compensation 
program called the Lowe’s Cash Deferral Plan. This plan is designed to 
permit certain employees to defer receipt of portions of their compensa-
tion, thereby delaying taxation on the deferral amount and on subsequent 
earnings until the balance is distributed. This plan does not provide for 
employer contributions.
 The Company recognized expense associated with contributions to 
employee retirement plans of $42 million, $136 million and $68 million 
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
 Subsequent to year-end, the Company made changes to the baseline 
and performance match provisions of the 401(k) Plan. Effective May 5, 
2007, the Company will increase the amount of the baseline match to a 
maximum of 4.25% (up from 2.25%) but will no longer offer a performance 
match. 401(k) Plan participants will be eligible for the baseline match 
after 180 days of continuous service.

Note 11  InCOME TaxES
The following is a reconciliation of the effective tax rate to the federal 
statutory tax rate:

     2006 2005 2004
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of 
 federal tax benefit 3.3 3.6 3.5
Share-based payment expense – 0.1 0.2
Other, net (0.4) (0.2) (0.2)
Effective tax rate 37.9% 38.5% 38.5%

 Components of Income Tax Provision 
(In millions)  2006 2005 2004
Current
 Federal $1,657 $1,514 $ 1,077
 State  242 254 174
Total current 1,899 1,768 1,251
Deferred
 Federal (11) (31) 80
 State  5 (6) 22
Total deferred (6) (37) 102
Total income tax provision $1,893 $1,731 $1,353

 The tax effect of cumulative temporary differences that gave rise to 
the deferred tax assets and liabilities at February 2, 2007, and February 3, 
2006, is as follows:

 February 2, 2007
(In millions)  Assets Liabilities Total
Excess property and store closing costs $ 17 $   – $    17
Self-insurance 129 – 129
Depreciation – (837) (837)
Rent     13 – 13
Vacation accrual 8 – 8
Sales returns reserve 22 – 22
Share-based payment expense 59 – 59
Other, net  44 (29) 15
Total     $292 $(866) $(574)

 February 3, 2006
(In millions)  Assets Liabilities Total
Excess property and store closing costs $ 19 $   – $  19
Self-insurance 81 – 81
Depreciation – (804) (804)
Rent     26 – 26
Vacation accrual 6 – 6
Sales returns reserve 44 – 44
Share-based payment expense 40 – 40
Other, net  19 (11) 8
Total     $235 $(815) $(580)

 The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce the carrying 
amount of deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that all or a por-
tion of the asset will not be realized. As of February 2, 2007, the Company 
had recorded a $4 million valuation allowance.
 The tax balances and income tax expense recognized by the Company 
are based on management’s interpretation of the current tax laws of multiple 
tax jurisdictions. Income tax expense reflects the Company’s best estimates 
and assumptions regarding the level of future taxable income and inter-
pretation of current tax statutes.
 The Company believes that its tax positions are consistent with applicable 
tax laws and that they are supportable. However, management believes that 
certain positions are likely to be challenged by taxing authorities. These 
challenges include a review of the Company’s tax filing positions, including 
the timing and amount of income and deductions in various tax jurisdic-
tions. In evaluating liabilities associated with its various tax filing positions, 
the Company has accrued for probable liabilities resulting from tax assess-
ments by tax authorities. The Company records these tax contingencies to 
address the potential exposures that can result from the diverse interpreta-
tions of tax statutes, rules and regulations. The amounts accrued were not 
material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements in any of the 
years presented.
 During 2006, the Company reached a settlement with the Internal 
Revenue Service (IRS) covering the tax years 2002 and 2003. Under the 
settlement agreement, the Company paid the IRS approximately $17 million, 
plus applicable interest charges.

Note 12  EaRnIngS PER SHaRE
Basic earnings per share (EPS) excludes dilution and is computed by 
dividing the applicable net earnings by the weighted-average number of 
common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share is 
calculated based on the weighted-average shares of common stock as 
adjusted for the potential dilutive effect of stock options and convertible 
notes as of the balance sheet date. The following table reconciles EPS for 
2006, 2005 and 2004:



41

Lowe’s 2006 Annual Report

(In millions, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004
Basic earnings per share:
Net earnings $3,105 $2,765 $2,167
Weighted-average shares outstanding 1,535 1,555 1,554
Basic earnings per share $  2.02 $  1.78 $  1.39
Diluted earnings per share:
Net earnings $ 3,105 $ 2,765 $ 2,167
Net earnings adjustment for interest  
 on convertible debt, net of tax 4 11      14
Net earnings, as adjusted $3,109 $2,776 $2,181
Weighted-average shares outstanding 1,535 1,555  1,554
Dilutive effect of share-based awards 9 10       10
Dilutive effect of convertible debt 22 42 53
Weighted-average shares, as adjusted 1,566 1,607 1,617
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.99 $ 1.73 $  1.35

 Stock options to purchase 6.8 million, 5.6 million and 1.2 million shares 
of common stock for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were excluded from 
the computation of diluted earnings per share because their effect would 
have been antidilutive.

Note 13  LEaSES
The Company leases store facilities and land for certain store facilities under 
agreements with original terms generally of 20 years. For lease agreements 
that provide for escalating rent payments or free-rent occupancy periods, 
the Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the non-
cancelable lease term and any option renewal period where failure to exercise 
such option would result in an economic penalty in such amount that renewal 
appears, at the inception of the lease, to be reasonably assured. The lease term 
commences on the date when all conditions precedent to the Company’s 
obligation to pay rent are satisfied. The leases generally contain provisions 
for four to six renewal options of five years each.
 Some agreements also provide for contingent rentals based on sales 
performance in excess of specified minimums. In 2006, 2005 and 2004, 
contingent rentals were insignificant. 
 Certain equipment is also leased by the Company under agreements 
ranging from two to five years. These agreements typically contain renewal 
options providing for a renegotiation of the lease, at the Company’s option, 
based on the fair market value at that time.
 The future minimum rental payments required under capital and 
operating leases having initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms 
in excess of one year are summarized as follows:

     Operating Leases Capital Leases

(In millions)  Real  Real 
Fiscal Year  Estate Equipment Estate Equipment Total

2007   $    321 $2 $  61 $1 $    385
2008   322 1 62 – 385
2009   322 – 62 – 384
2010   321 – 62 – 383
2011   321 – 61 – 382
Later years 3,917 – 335 – 4,252
Total minimum  
 lease payments $5,524 $3 $643 $1 $6,171
Total minimum capital lease payments $ 644
Less amount representing interest 251
Present value of minimum lease payments 393
Less current maturities 27
Present value of minimum lease payments,  
 less current maturities $ 366

 Rental expenses under operating leases for real estate and equipment 
were $318 million, $301 million and $250 million in 2006, 2005 and 
2004, respectively.

Note 14   COMMITMEnTS anD COnTIngEnCIES
The Company is a defendant in legal proceedings considered to be in the 
normal course of business, none of which, individually or collectively, are 
believed to have a risk of having a material impact on the Company’s financial 
statements. In evaluating liabilities associated with its various legal proceed-
ings, the Company has accrued for probable liabilities associated with 
these matters. The amounts accrued were not material to the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements in any of the years presented. 
 As of February 2, 2007, the Company had non-cancelable commitments 
related to purchases of merchandise inventory, property and construction 
of buildings, as well as commitments related to certain marketing and 
information technology programs of $2.3 billion. Payments under these 
commitments are scheduled to be made as follows: 2007, $1.1 billion; 
2008, $485 million; 2009, $349 million; 2010, $379 million; 2011, $3 million; 
thereafter, $12 million. 

Note 15   RELaTED PaRTIES
A brother-in-law of the Company’s Executive Vice President of Business 
Development is a senior officer of a vendor that provides millwork and 
other building products to the Company. In 2006, 2005 and 2004, the 
Company purchased products in the amounts of $101 million, $84 mil-
lion and $80 million, respectively, from this vendor. Amounts payable to 
this vendor were insignificant at February 2, 2007 and February 3, 2006.

Note 16  OTHER InFORMaTIOn
Net interest expense is comprised of the following:

(In millions)  2006 2005 2004
Long-term debt $ 183 $ 171 $ 159
Capitalized leases 34 39 38
Interest income (52)  (45)  (16)
Interest capitalized (32)  (28)  (28)
Other  21 21 23
Net interest expense $154 $158 $176

 Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

(In millions)  2006 2005 2004
Cash paid for interest, net of amount 
 capitalized $   179 $   173 $   174
Cash paid for income taxes $2,031 $1,593 $1,192

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Noncash fixed asset acquisitions,  
 including assets acquired under  
 capital lease $  159 $  175 $   133
Conversions of long-term debt to equity $    82 $   565  $    6 
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Sales by Product Category:
(Dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Product Category Total Sales % Total Sales % Total Sales %

Appliances  $ 4,193  9% $ 3,912 9% $ 3,165 9%
Lumber   3,690  8 3,689 9 3,305 9
Flooring   3,214  7 2,883 7 2,357 6
Millwork  3,137 7 2,935 7 2,428 7
Paint    3,073  7  2,774 6 2,317 6
Building materials  3,002  6 2,756 6 2,230 6
Fashion plumbing 2,893  6 2,616 6 2,163 6
Lighting   2,573  5 2,408 6 2,088 6
Tools    2,563  5 2,428 6 2,138 6
Lawn & landscape products 2,356  5 2,090 5 1,827 5
Hardware   2,296  5 2,121 5 1,785 5
Seasonal living 2,154  5 1,935  4 1,694 5
Cabinets & countertops 1,903  4 1,726  4 1,348 4
Outdoor power equipment 1,805  4 1,807  4 1,503 4
Rough plumbing 1,664  4 1,416  3 1,161 3
Rough electrical 1,479  3 1,203  3 977 3
Nursery   1,454  3 1,292  3 1,160  3
Home environment 1,145  2 1,017  2 835  2
Walls/windows 1,101  2 1,054  2 908  2
Home organization 1,001  2 946  2 793  2
Other    231 1 235  1 282  1
Totals     $46,927  100%  $43,243  100%  $36,464  100%

Lowe’s Stores by State
(As of February 2, 2007)

Alabama 34
Alaska 4
Arizona 23
Arkansas 19
California 83
Colorado 22
Connecticut 9
Delaware 6
Florida 92
Georgia 57

Hawaii 3
Idaho 7
Illinois 34
Indiana 41
Iowa 10
Kansas 10
Kentucky 36
Louisiana 26
Maine 6
Maryland 23

Massachusetts 16
Michigan 45
Minnesota 9
Mississippi 22
Missouri 34
Montana 5
Nebraska 4
Nevada 13
New Hampshire 8
New Jersey 34

New Mexico 9
New York 43
North Carolina 90
North Dakota 3
Ohio 73
Oklahoma 26
Oregon 11
Pennsylvania 64
Rhode Island 4
South Carolina 40

South Dakota 3
Tennessee 50
Texas 113
Utah 12
Virginia 53
Washington 28
West Virginia 18
Wisconsin 9
Wyoming 1
Total Stores 1,385



Selected Statement of Earnings Data:

 (In millions, except per share data) 2006 2005* 2004 2003 2002
 Net sales  $ 46,927 $ 43,243 $ 36,464 $ 30,838 $ 26,112
 Gross margin  16,198  14,790  12,240  9,533  7,915
 Earnings from continuing operations  3,105  2,765  2,167  1,807  1,473
 Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax  –  –  –  15  12
 Net earnings  3,105  2,765  2,167  1,822  1,485
 Basic earnings per share – continuing operations  2.02  1.78  1.39  1.15  0.94
 Basic earnings per share – discontinued operations  –  –  –  0.01  0.01
 Basic earnings per share  2.02  1.78  1.39  1.16  0.95
 Diluted earnings per share – continuing operations  1.99  1.73  1.35  1.12  0.92
 Diluted earnings per share – discontinued operations  –  –   –  0.01  0.01
 Diluted earnings per share  1.99  1.73  1.35  1.13  0.93
 Dividends per share $ 0.18 $  0.11 $ 0.08 $ 0.06 $ 0.04

Selected Balance Sheet Data:
 Total assets $ 27,767 $ 24,639 $ 21,101 $ 18,667 $ 15,790
 Long-term debt, excluding current maturities $ 4,325 $ 3,499  $ 3,060  $ 3,678  $ 3,736 

Note: The selected financial data has been adjusted to present the 2003 disposal of the Contractor Yards as a discontinued operation for all periods.

Selected quarterly Data:

(In millions, except per share data)   First Second Third Fourth

2006
Net sales      $ 11,921  $ 13,389  $ 11,211  $ 10,406
Gross margin    4,169  4,478  3,865  3,687
Net earnings     841  935  716  613
Basic earnings per share     0.54    0.61    0.47    0.40
Diluted earnings per share    $ 0.53   $ 0.60   $ 0.46  $ 0.40

(In millions, except per share data)   First Second Third Fourth*

2005
Net sales      $ 9,913  $ 11,929   $ 10,592   $ 10,808
Gross margin     3,398    4,027    3,580    3,785
Net earnings      586    839    646    693
Basic earnings per share     0.38    0.54    0.41    0.44
Diluted earnings per share    $ 0.37   $ 0.52  $ 0.40   $ 0.43

* The fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 contained an additional week. Therefore, fiscal 2005 contained 53 weeks, while all other years contained 52 weeks.
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Selected Financial Data (Unaudited) continued
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quarterly Stock Price Range and Cash Dividend Payment

     Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
     High Low Dividend High Low Dividend High Low Dividend

1st Quarter $34.83 $30.58 $0.030 $29.99 $25.36 $0.020 $29.33 $25.85 $0.015
2nd Quarter 32.85 26.90 0.050 33.51 25.94 0.030 28.08 23.84 0.020
3rd Quarter 31.55 26.15 0.050 34.48 28.92 0.030 28.88 22.95 0.020
4th Quarter $34.65 $28.59 $0.050 $34.85 $29.83 $0.030 $30.27 $27.53 $0.020

As of March 23, 2007 there were 31,770 registered holders of Lowe’s common stock. 

Monthly Stock Price and Trading Volume
     Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005 Fiscal 2004
    Shares    Shares    Shares
  High Low  Traded High Low  Traded High Low  Traded
February $34.83 $30.58 148,615,200 $29.99 $28.32 116,188,200 $29.33 $26.40 147,812,800
March 34.43 31.94 176,907,800 29.54 27.87 142,744,400 28.47 25.89 168,190,600
April 32.85 31.15 143,440,400 28.68 25.36 154,511,600 28.15 25.85 150,115,000
May 32.85 29.57  165,476,000 29.00 25.94  163,110,000  27.25 24.05  191,581,800
June 31.75 28.72 176,997,400 30.00 28.26 128,618,000  28.08 25.94 147,711,800
July 29.84 26.90 177,045,100 33.51 28.50 142,070,000  27.05 23.84 151,542,600
August 29.95 26.15 177,348,900 33.49 31.15 190,463,800  25.45 22.95 162,209,800
September 30.07 26.76 228,877,300 34.48 30.62 172,644,600  27.50 24.80 138,108,800
October 31.55 28.80 175,250,300 32.60 28.92 179,358,200  28.88 26.95 123,449,600
November 31.43 28.59 201,035,600 33.94 29.83 186,558,400 30.27 27.53 154,472,000
December 32.50 30.15 170,769,300 34.85 33.25 120,841,600 29.78 27.82 111,517,600
January $34.65 $31.13 136,214,400 $33.71 $31.53 146,092,200 $29.17 $27.54 112,605,000

Source: The Wall Street Journal
Adjusted for the 2-for-1 stock split, effective July 3, 2006.

Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 
Stock Performance (Unaudited)

Stock Splits and Stock Dividends 
Since 1961

•  A 100% stock dividend, effective April 5, 1966  
(which had the net effect of a 2-for-1 stock split).

•  A 2-for-1 stock split, effective November 18, 1969.

•  A 50% stock dividend, effective November 30, 1971 
(which had the net effect of a 3-for-2 stock split).

•  A 331⁄3% stock dividend, effective July 25, 1972 
(which had the net effect of a 4-for-3 stock split).

•  A 50% stock dividend, effective June 2, 1976 
(which had the net effect of a 3-for-2 stock split).

•  A 3-for-2 stock split, effective November 2, 1981.

•  A 5-for-3 stock split, effective April 29, 1983.

•  A 100% stock dividend, effective June 29, 1992 
(which had the net effect of a 2-for-1 stock split).

•  A 2-for-1 stock split, effective April 4, 1994.

•  A 2-for-1 stock split, effective June 29, 1998.

•  A 2-for-1 stock split, effective July 2, 2001.

•  A 2-for-1 stock split, effective July 3, 2006.
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Earnings Statements
(In millions, except per share data) Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005

Quarter Ended  2/2/07 11/3/06 8/4/06 5/5/06 2/3/06* 10/28/05 7/29/05 4/29/05

Net sales $10,406 $11,211 $13,389 $11,921 $ 10,808   $  10,592   $ 11,929   $  9,913 
Gross margin 3,687 3,865 4,478 4,169 3,785  3,580  4,027  3,398
Expenses:

  SG&A 2,335   2,320   2,617   2,467   2,303   2,212   2,363   2,136
 Store opening costs  49   44   28   25   57   35   25   25
 Depreciation 308  297  283  274  261  246  236   237
 Interest – net 43  45  30  35  36  36  39   47
Total expenses 2,735  2,706  2,958  2,801  2,657  2,529  2,663   2,445
Pre-tax earnings 952  1,159  1,520  1,368  1,128  1,051  1,364   953
Income tax provision 339  443  585   527   435   405   525   367
Net earnings 613  716  935   841   693   646   839   586
Basic earnings per share  0.40   0.47   0.61   0.54   0.44   0.41   0.54   0.38
Diluted earnings per share  $  0.40  $  0.46  $  0.60   $  0.53  $    0.43  $     0.40  $    0.52  $  0.37

Earnings Statement Changes
(Changes from same quarter previous year, to nearest tenth percent)

     Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005

Quarter Ended  2/2/07 11/3/06 8/4/06 5/5/06 2/3/06* 10/28/05 7/29/05 4/29/05

Net sales (3.7)% 5.8% 12.2% 20.3% 26.4% 16.9% 17.3% 14.2%
Gross margin (2.6) 8.0  11.2  22.7  27.1  18.0  19.1  19.2
Expenses:

 SG&A 1.4  4.9  10.7  15.5  25.6  16.1  20.0  15.3
 Store opening costs (14.0) 25.7  12.0  – 11.8  9.4  38.9  13.6
 Depreciation 18.0  20.7  19.9  15.6  16.0  11.3  12.4  16.7
 Interest – net 19.4  25.0  (23.1) (25.5) (16.3) (10.0) (13.3) (2.1)
Total expenses 2.9  7.0  11.1  14.6  23.4  15.0  18.8  15.0
Pre-tax earnings (15.6) 10.3  11.4  43.5  36.9  26.0  19.9  31.6
Income tax provision (22.1) 9.4  11.4  43.6  37.7  25.8  20.1  32.0
Net earnings (11.5) 10.8  11.4  43.5  36.4  26.2  19.7  31.4
Basic earnings per share (9.1) 14.6  13.0  42.1  33.3  24.2  20.0  35.7
Diluted earnings per share (7.0)% 15.0% 15.4% 43.2% 34.4% 25.0% 18.2% 37.0%

Earnings Statement Percentages
(Percent of sales to nearest hundredth;  
income tax is percent of pre-tax earnings)

     Fiscal 2006 Fiscal 2005

Quarter Ended  2/2/07 11/3/06 8/4/06 5/5/06 2/3/06* 10/28/05 7/29/05 4/29/05

Net sales  100.00%  100.00%  100.00%  100.00%  100.00%  100.00%  100.00%  100.00%
Gross margin 35.44  34.47  33.44  34.97  35.02  33.80   33.76   34.28
Expenses:

 SG&A 22.44  20.70  19.54  20.69  21.31  20.88  19.81   21.55
 Store opening costs 0.47  0.39  0.21  0.21  0.53   0.33  0.21   0.25
 Depreciation 2.97  2.65  2.11   2.30   2.41   2.32   1.97   2.39
 Interest – net 0.42  0.40  0.23   0.30   0.33   0.34   0.33   0.47
Total expenses  26.30  24.14   22.09   23.50   24.58   23.87   22.32   24.66
Pre-tax earnings 9.14  10.33  11.35   11.47   10.44   9.93   11.44   9.62
Income tax provision  35.57   38.20   38.51   38.49   38.50   38.50   38.50   38.50
Net earnings  5.89%  6.39%  6.98%  7.06%  6.42%  6.10%  7.03%  5.92%

* The fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 contained an additional week.

Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 
Quarterly Review of Performance (Unaudited)
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Lowe’s Companies, Inc.  
Financial History (Unaudited) 
10-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION 1

     5-year February 2, February 3, January 28, January 30,  January 31, February 1, February 2, January 28, January 29, January 30,
Fiscal Years Ended On CGR % 2007 2006* 2005 2004  2003 2002 2001*  2000 1999 1998
Stores and people
 1 Number of stores  14.0    1,385    1,234    1,087   952  1   828    718    624    550    497    456    1 
 2 Square footage (in millions)  14.3    157.1    140.1    123.7    108.8  2   94.7    80.7    67.8    57.0    47.8    39.9  2 
 3 Number of employees  14.4    210,142    185,314    161,964    147,052  3   120,692    107,404    93,669    85,145    71,792    63,261  3 
 4 Customer transactions (in millions)  11.5    680    639    575    521  4   460    394    342    299    268    230  4 
 5 Average purchase  $ 68.98  $ 67.67  $ 63.43  $ 59.21   5 $ 56.80  $ 55.05  $ 53.78  $ 51.73  $ 48.37  $ 46.77   5
Comparative income statements (in millions) 
 6 Sales   16.7  $ 46,927  $ 43,243  $ 36,464  $ 30,838  6  $ 26,112  $ 21,714  $ 18,368  $ 15,445  $ 12,946  $ 10,779   6 
 7 Depreciation  17.9    1,162    980    859    739  7   617    509    403    330    283    251  7 
 8 Interest – net  (2.4)   154    158    176    180  8   182    174    121    85    81    71    8 
 9 Pre-tax earnings  26.6    4,998    4,496    3,520    2,908  9   2,362    1,535    1,238    1,021    751    569   9 
 10 Income tax provision  NM    1,893    1,731    1,353    1,101  10   889    566    454    373    273    205   10 
 11 Earnings from continuing operations  26.2    3,105    2,765    2,167    1,807  11   1,473    969    784    648    478    364   11 
 12 Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax  NM   –   –  –    15  12   12    13    14    15    13    11   12 
 13 Net earnings  25.9    3,105    2,765    2,167    1,822  13   1,485    982    798    663    491    375   13 
 14 Cash dividends  35.7    276    171    116    87  14   66    60    53    48    41    38   14 
 15 Earnings retained  25.1  $ 2,829  $ 2,594  $ 2,051  $ 1,735  15 $ 1,419  $ 922  $ 745  $ 615  $ 450  $ 337   15 
Dollars per share (weighted-average shares, assuming dilution) 
 16 Sales   17.3  $ 29.97  $ 26.91  $ 22.55  $ 18.91  16 $ 16.12  $ 13.49  $ 11.94  $ 10.06  $ 8.61  $ 7.27  16 
 17 Earnings  26.3   1.99   1.73   1.35   1.13  17  0.93   0.62   0.52   0.43   0.33   0.25  17 
 18  Cash dividends  36.4   0.18   0.11   0.08   0.06  18  0.04   0.04   0.04   0.03   0.03   0.03  18 
 19  Earnings retained  25.4   1.81   1.62   1.27   1.07  19  0.89   0.58   0.48   0.40   0.30   0.22  19 
 20  Shareholders’ equity  19.7  $ 10.04  $ 8.90  $ 7.11  $ 6.25  20  $ 5.08  $ 4.09  $ 3.54  $ 3.03  $ 2.39  $ 2.00  20  
Financial ratios
 21  Asset turnover 2  1.90  2.05  1.95  1.95  21 1.93  1.92  2.05  2.19  2.22   2.16  21 
 22  Return on sales 3  6.62% 6.39% 5.94% 5.91% 22 5.69% 4.52% 4.34% 4.29% 3.79% 3.48% 22 
 23  Return on assets 4  12.60% 13.10% 11.61% 11.54% 23 10.96% 8.70% 8.91% 9.41% 8.42% 7.52% 23 
 24  Return on shareholders’ equity 5   21.72%  24.05%  21.27%  22.15% 24  22.55%  18.03%  17.13%  18.45%  16.58%  14.66% 24  
Comparative balance sheets (in millions) 
 25 Total current assets  11.5   $ 8,314  $ 7,788  $ 6,866  $ 6,438  25 $ 5,356  $ 4,818  $ 4,158  $ 3,688  $ 2,865  $ 2,427  25 
 26  Cash and short-term investments  (1.4)  796   876   813   1,624  26  1,126   853   469   569   249   275  26 
 27  Merchandise inventory – net  14.6   7,144   6,635   5,850   4,482  27  3,911   3,611   3,285   2,812   2,385   1,985  27 
 28  Other current assets  (2.7)  213   122   84   252  28  265   244   323   253   189   157  28 
 29  Fixed assets – net  17.2   18,971   16,354   13,911   11,819   29 10,245   8,565   6,964   5,122   4,046   3,294  29 
 30  Other assets  17.6   317   203   178   241  30  160   141   131   111   108   79  30 
 31  Total assets  15.4   27,767   24,639   21,101   18,667  31  15,790   13,546   11,287   8,952   7,047   5,835  31 
 32  Total current liabilities  17.3   6,539   5,832   5,648   4,144  32  3,360   2,940   2,911   2,380   1,924   1,554  32 
 33  Accounts payable  17.3   3,524   2,832   2,695   2,212  33  1,791   1,589   1,708   1,561   1,221   1,036  33 
 34  Other current liabilities  21.1   2,532   2,544   1,937   1,520  34  1,204   971   745   401   270   241  34 
 35  Long-term debt (excluding current maturities)  3.0   4,325   3,499   3,060   3,678  35  3,736   3,734   2,698   1,727   1,364   1,191  35 
 36  Total liabilities  11.6   12,042   10,343   9,603   8,479  36  7,564   6,962   5,841   4,293  3,453   2,874  36 
 37  Shareholders’ equity  19.0  $ 15,725  $ 14,296  $ 11,498  $ 10,188   37 $ 8,226  $ 6,584  $ 5,446  $ 4,658  $ 3,594  $ 2,961  37
 38  Equity/long-term debt (excluding current maturities)  3.64  4.09  3.76  2.77  38 2.20  1.76  2.02  2.70  2.63  2.49  38 
 39  Year-end leverage factor: assets/equity   1.77   1.72   1.84   1.83  39  1.92   2.06   2.07   1.92   1.96   1.97  39
Shareholders, shares and book value
 40  Shareholders of record, year-end   29,439   27,427    27,071    26,553  40   25,405    19,277    16,895    15,446    14,508    12,386  40 
 41  Shares outstanding, year-end (in millions)    1,525    1,568    1,548    1,575  41   1,564    1,551    1,533    1,529    1,498    1,477  41 
 42  Weighted-average shares, assuming dilution (in millions)    1,566    1,607    1,617    1,631  42   1,620    1,610    1,538    1,536    1,504    1,482  42 
 43  Book value per share  $ 10.31  $ 9.12  $ 7.43  $ 6.47  43 $ 5.26  $ 4.25  $ 3.55  $ 3.05  $ 2.40  $ 2.00  43 
Stock price during calendar year 6 (adjusted for stock splits)
 44  High   $ 34.83 $ 34.85 $ 30.27  $ 30.21  44 $ 25.00  $ 24.44  $ 16.81  $ 16.61  $ 14.69  $ 6.45  44 
 45  Low    $ 26.15 $ 25.36 $ 22.95  $ 16.69  45 $ 16.25  $ 12.40  $ 8.56  $ 10.75  $ 5.97  $ 4.05  45 
 46  Closing price December 31  $ 31.15  $ 33.33  $ 28.80  $ 27.70  46 $ 18.75  $ 23.21  $ 11.13  $ 14.94  $ 12.80  $ 5.96  46 
Price/earnings ratio
 47  High   17 20 22 27 47 27 40 32 39 45 25 47 
 48  Low   13 15 17 15 48 17 20 16 25 18 16 48 
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     5-year February 2, February 3, January 28, January 30,  January 31, February 1, February 2, January 28, January 29, January 30,
Fiscal Years Ended On CGR % 2007 2006* 2005 2004  2003 2002 2001*  2000 1999 1998
Stores and people
 1 Number of stores  14.0    1,385    1,234    1,087   952  1   828    718    624    550    497    456    1 
 2 Square footage (in millions)  14.3    157.1    140.1    123.7    108.8  2   94.7    80.7    67.8    57.0    47.8    39.9  2 
 3 Number of employees  14.4    210,142    185,314    161,964    147,052  3   120,692    107,404    93,669    85,145    71,792    63,261  3 
 4 Customer transactions (in millions)  11.5    680    639    575    521  4   460    394    342    299    268    230  4 
 5 Average purchase  $ 68.98  $ 67.67  $ 63.43  $ 59.21   5 $ 56.80  $ 55.05  $ 53.78  $ 51.73  $ 48.37  $ 46.77   5
Comparative income statements (in millions) 
 6 Sales   16.7  $ 46,927  $ 43,243  $ 36,464  $ 30,838  6  $ 26,112  $ 21,714  $ 18,368  $ 15,445  $ 12,946  $ 10,779   6 
 7 Depreciation  17.9    1,162    980    859    739  7   617    509    403    330    283    251  7 
 8 Interest – net  (2.4)   154    158    176    180  8   182    174    121    85    81    71    8 
 9 Pre-tax earnings  26.6    4,998    4,496    3,520    2,908  9   2,362    1,535    1,238    1,021    751    569   9 
 10 Income tax provision  NM    1,893    1,731    1,353    1,101  10   889    566    454    373    273    205   10 
 11 Earnings from continuing operations  26.2    3,105    2,765    2,167    1,807  11   1,473    969    784    648    478    364   11 
 12 Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax  NM   –   –  –    15  12   12    13    14    15    13    11   12 
 13 Net earnings  25.9    3,105    2,765    2,167    1,822  13   1,485    982    798    663    491    375   13 
 14 Cash dividends  35.7    276    171    116    87  14   66    60    53    48    41    38   14 
 15 Earnings retained  25.1  $ 2,829  $ 2,594  $ 2,051  $ 1,735  15 $ 1,419  $ 922  $ 745  $ 615  $ 450  $ 337   15 
Dollars per share (weighted-average shares, assuming dilution) 
 16 Sales   17.3  $ 29.97  $ 26.91  $ 22.55  $ 18.91  16 $ 16.12  $ 13.49  $ 11.94  $ 10.06  $ 8.61  $ 7.27  16 
 17 Earnings  26.3   1.99   1.73   1.35   1.13  17  0.93   0.62   0.52   0.43   0.33   0.25  17 
 18  Cash dividends  36.4   0.18   0.11   0.08   0.06  18  0.04   0.04   0.04   0.03   0.03   0.03  18 
 19  Earnings retained  25.4   1.81   1.62   1.27   1.07  19  0.89   0.58   0.48   0.40   0.30   0.22  19 
 20  Shareholders’ equity  19.7  $ 10.04  $ 8.90  $ 7.11  $ 6.25  20  $ 5.08  $ 4.09  $ 3.54  $ 3.03  $ 2.39  $ 2.00  20  
Financial ratios
 21  Asset turnover 2  1.90  2.05  1.95  1.95  21 1.93  1.92  2.05  2.19  2.22   2.16  21 
 22  Return on sales 3  6.62% 6.39% 5.94% 5.91% 22 5.69% 4.52% 4.34% 4.29% 3.79% 3.48% 22 
 23  Return on assets 4  12.60% 13.10% 11.61% 11.54% 23 10.96% 8.70% 8.91% 9.41% 8.42% 7.52% 23 
 24  Return on shareholders’ equity 5   21.72%  24.05%  21.27%  22.15% 24  22.55%  18.03%  17.13%  18.45%  16.58%  14.66% 24  
Comparative balance sheets (in millions) 
 25 Total current assets  11.5   $ 8,314  $ 7,788  $ 6,866  $ 6,438  25 $ 5,356  $ 4,818  $ 4,158  $ 3,688  $ 2,865  $ 2,427  25 
 26  Cash and short-term investments  (1.4)  796   876   813   1,624  26  1,126   853   469   569   249   275  26 
 27  Merchandise inventory – net  14.6   7,144   6,635   5,850   4,482  27  3,911   3,611   3,285   2,812   2,385   1,985  27 
 28  Other current assets  (2.7)  213   122   84   252  28  265   244   323   253   189   157  28 
 29  Fixed assets – net  17.2   18,971   16,354   13,911   11,819   29 10,245   8,565   6,964   5,122   4,046   3,294  29 
 30  Other assets  17.6   317   203   178   241  30  160   141   131   111   108   79  30 
 31  Total assets  15.4   27,767   24,639   21,101   18,667  31  15,790   13,546   11,287   8,952   7,047   5,835  31 
 32  Total current liabilities  17.3   6,539   5,832   5,648   4,144  32  3,360   2,940   2,911   2,380   1,924   1,554  32 
 33  Accounts payable  17.3   3,524   2,832   2,695   2,212  33  1,791   1,589   1,708   1,561   1,221   1,036  33 
 34  Other current liabilities  21.1   2,532   2,544   1,937   1,520  34  1,204   971   745   401   270   241  34 
 35  Long-term debt (excluding current maturities)  3.0   4,325   3,499   3,060   3,678  35  3,736   3,734   2,698   1,727   1,364   1,191  35 
 36  Total liabilities  11.6   12,042   10,343   9,603   8,479  36  7,564   6,962   5,841   4,293  3,453   2,874  36 
 37  Shareholders’ equity  19.0  $ 15,725  $ 14,296  $ 11,498  $ 10,188   37 $ 8,226  $ 6,584  $ 5,446  $ 4,658  $ 3,594  $ 2,961  37
 38  Equity/long-term debt (excluding current maturities)  3.64  4.09  3.76  2.77  38 2.20  1.76  2.02  2.70  2.63  2.49  38 
 39  Year-end leverage factor: assets/equity   1.77   1.72   1.84   1.83  39  1.92   2.06   2.07   1.92   1.96   1.97  39
Shareholders, shares and book value
 40  Shareholders of record, year-end   29,439   27,427    27,071    26,553  40   25,405    19,277    16,895    15,446    14,508    12,386  40 
 41  Shares outstanding, year-end (in millions)    1,525    1,568    1,548    1,575  41   1,564    1,551    1,533    1,529    1,498    1,477  41 
 42  Weighted-average shares, assuming dilution (in millions)    1,566    1,607    1,617    1,631  42   1,620    1,610    1,538    1,536    1,504    1,482  42 
 43  Book value per share  $ 10.31  $ 9.12  $ 7.43  $ 6.47  43 $ 5.26  $ 4.25  $ 3.55  $ 3.05  $ 2.40  $ 2.00  43 
Stock price during calendar year 6 (adjusted for stock splits)
 44  High   $ 34.83 $ 34.85 $ 30.27  $ 30.21  44 $ 25.00  $ 24.44  $ 16.81  $ 16.61  $ 14.69  $ 6.45  44 
 45  Low    $ 26.15 $ 25.36 $ 22.95  $ 16.69  45 $ 16.25  $ 12.40  $ 8.56  $ 10.75  $ 5.97  $ 4.05  45 
 46  Closing price December 31  $ 31.15  $ 33.33  $ 28.80  $ 27.70  46 $ 18.75  $ 23.21  $ 11.13  $ 14.94  $ 12.80  $ 5.96  46 
Price/earnings ratio
 47  High   17 20 22 27 47 27 40 32 39 45 25 47 
 48  Low   13 15 17 15 48 17 20 16 25 18 16 48 

Explanatory Notes: 

 1  Amounts herein reflect the Contractor Yards as  
a discontinued operation.

 2  Asset Turnover: Sales divided by Beginning Assets

 3  Return on Sales: Net Earnings divided by Sales

 4  Return on Assets: Net Earnings divided by 
Beginning Assets

 5  Return on Shareholders’ Equity: Net Earnings 
divided by Beginning Equity

 6  Stock Price Source: The Wall Street Journal 

 *  Fiscal year contained 53 weeks. 
  All other years contained 52 weeks.

NM = not meaningful

CGR = compound growth rate
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Corporate Offices 
1000 Lowe’s Boulevard
Mooresville, NC 28117
704-758-1000

Lowe’s Website
www.Lowes.com

Stock Transfer Agent & Registrar, 
Dividend Disbursing Agent and  
Dividend Reinvesting Agent
Computershare Trust Company N.A. 
P.O. Box 43078 
Providence, RI 02940
For direct deposit of dividends,  
registered shareholders may call  
Computershare toll-free at 877-282-1174.
Registered shareholders with e-mail addresses 
can send account inquiries electronically to 
Computershare through its website at  
www.computershare.com, and clicking  
on Contact Us.
Registered shareholders may access their 
accounts online by visiting Investor Centre at 
www.computershare.com, and clicking on 
Shareholder Services.
Investors can join Lowe’s Stock Advantage 
Direct Stock Purchase Plan by visiting  
www.Lowes.com/investor, and clicking on  
Buy Stock Direct.

Dividends
Lowe’s has paid a cash dividend each quarter 
since becoming a public company in 1961.
Dividend record dates are usually the middle  
of fiscal April, July, October and January.
Dividend payment dates are usually the last of 
fiscal April, July, October and January.

Annual Meeting Date
May 25, 2007 at 10:00 a.m. 
Ballantyne Resort Hotel 
Charlotte, North Carolina

Stock Trading Information 
Lowe’s common stock is listed on the New 
York Stock Exchange (Ticker Symbol: LOW)

General Counsel
Gaither M. Keener, Jr.
Senior Vice President, General Counsel, 
Secretary and Chief Compliance Officer
704-758-1000

Independent Registered  
Public Accounting Firm 
Deloitte & Touche LLP
1100 Carillon Building
227 West Trade Street
Charlotte, NC  28202-1675
704-887-1690

Shareholder Services
Shareholders’ and security analysts’  
inquiries should be directed to:
Paul Taaffe  
Vice President, Investor Relations 
704-758-2033.
For copies of financial information: 
888-34LOWES  (888-345-6937) 
or visit www.Lowes.com/investor.

Public Relations
Media inquiries should be directed to: 
Chris Ahearn 
Vice President, Public Relations 
704-758-2304
www.Lowes.com/presspass.
To view Lowe’s Social Responsibility Report, 
visit: www.Lowes.com/socialresponsibility.
At least 90% of the fiber used to manufacture this 
paper comes from well-managed forests certified 
to a sustainable forest management standard 
with 10% made from post-consumer recycled 
fiber. To see additional information about Lowe’s 
commitment to sustainable forest management, 
visit: www.Lowes.com/woodpolicy.

Corporate and Investor Information
Business Description 
Lowe’s Companies, Inc. is a $46.9 billion retailer, offering a complete line of home improvement products and services. The Company, through its  
subsidiaries, serves more than 13 million do-it-yourself, do-it-for-me and Commercial Business Customers each week through 1,385 stores in  
49 states. Lowe’s is the world’s second-largest home improvement retailer and the 7th largest retailer in the U.S. Based in Mooresville, N.C.,  
the 60-year-old company employs more than 210,000 people. Lowe’s has been a publicly held company since October 10, 1961. The Company’s  
stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange with shares trading under the symbol LOW. For more information, visit www.Lowes.com.

D
es

ig
ne

d 
by

 C
or

po
ra

te
 R

ep
or

ts 
In

c.
/A

tla
nt

a, 
G

A
 

Pr
im

ar
y P

ho
to

gr
ap

hy
:  B

o 
C

al
ilu

ng
  P

ho
to

gr
ap

hy
   

Pr
in

tin
g:

 Th
e H

en
ne

ga
n 

C
om

pa
ny

Lowe’s files reports with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC), including 
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports 
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K 
and any other filings required by the SEC. 
Certifications by Lowe’s Chief Executive Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer regarding the qual-
ity of the Company’s public disclosure have 
been included as exhibits in Lowe’s SEC reports 
as required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002. In addition, in 2006, Lowe’s Chief 
Executive Officer provided the New York 
Stock Exchange the annual CEO certification 
regarding Lowe’s compliance with the New 
York Stock Exchange’s corporate governance 
listing standards. 

The reports Lowe’s files with, or furnishes to, 
the SEC, and all amendments to those reports, 
are available without charge on Lowe’s website  
(www.Lowes.com) as soon as reasonably  
practicable after Lowe’s files them with, or  
furnishes them to, the SEC.  

Copies of Lowe’s 2006 Annual Report on  
Form 10-K and Quarterly Reports on  
Form 10-Q, and Annual Report to Shareholders 
are available without charge upon written 
request to Gaither M. Keener, Jr., Secretary 
at Lowe’s corporate offices or by calling 
888-345-6937.

Additional information available on our  
website includes our Corporate Governance  
Guidelines, Board of Directors Committee  
Charters, Code of Business Conduct and  
Ethics, and Social Responsibility Report,  
as well as other financial information. 
Written copies are available to shareholders 
on request.



 

What eLse has Changed
In 60 YeaRs?

•    The population in the United states has more than doubled from approximately  
 130 million to more than 300 million.

•    The proportion of the U.s. population age 65 and older has increased from 7% to 
 more than 12%.

•    The average U.s. household size has decreased from approximately  
 3.7 to 2.6 persons.

•    approximately 50% of the U.s. population resides in suburban areas  
 compared with less than 15% 60 years ago.

•    The U.s. population has moved away from being a nation of renters to homeowners. 
 The homeownership rate in the U.s. is at near-record levels of almost 70%.

 source: U.s. Census Bureau

LOWe’s VIsIOn 
We will provide customer-valued solutions  
with the best prices, products and services  

to make Lowe’s the first choice  
for home improvement. 

Lowe’s Companies, Inc.
1000 Lowe’s Boulevard
Mooresville, nC  28117

www.Lowes.com 002Cs-14164




